# BRINKER INTERNATIONAL INC Form SC 13G/A August 10, 2009

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 13G

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No.\_5\_)\*

BRINKER INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Name of Issuer)
Common Stock
(Title of Class of Securities)
109641100
(CUSIP Number)
07/31/2009
(Date of Event Which Requires Filing of this Statement)
Check the appropriate box to designate the rule pursuant to which this Schedule is filed:
[X] Rule 13d-1(b)
[ ] Rule 13d-1(c)
[ ] Rule 13d-1(d)
*The remainder of this cover page shall be filled out for a reporting person's initial filing on this form with respect to the subject class of securities, and for any subsequent amendment containing information which would alter the disclosures provided in a prior cover page.
The information required in the remainder of this cover page shall not be deemed to be "filed" for the purpose of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Act") or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section of the Act but shall be subject to all other provisions of the Act (however, see the Notes).
CUSIP NO. 109641100
1 NAMES OF REPORTING PERSONS.  I.R.S. IDENTIFICATION NOS. OF ABOVE PERSONS (ENTITIES ONLY).  EARNEST Partners, LLC
2 CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX IF A MEMBER OF A GROUP (SEE INSTRUCTIONS)  (a) [ ]  (b) [ ]

3	SEC USE O	JLY					
4	CITIZENSH	IP OR	PLACE OF ORGANIZATION State of Georgia				
NUM	BER OF	5	SOLE VOTING POWER 2,226,228				
OWNED BY EACH		6	SHARED VOTING POWER 1,293,721				
		7	SOLE DISPOSITIVE POWER 5,100,797				
		8 SHARED DISPOSITIVE POWER 0					
9	9 AGGREGATE AMOUNT BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY EACH REPORTING PERSON 5,100,797						
10	CHECK BOX (SEE INSTE		HE AGGREGATE AMOUNT IN ROW (9) EXCLUDES CERTAIN SHARES				
11	PERCENT OF	CLAS	SS REPRESENTED BY AMOUNT IN ROW (9) 5.0%				
12	TYPE OF R	EPORTI	ING PERSON (SEE INSTRUCTIONS)				
	IA						

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR SCHEDULE 13G

Instructions for Cover Page

- (1) Names and I.R.S. Identification Numbers of Reporting Persons—Furnish the full legal name of each person for whom the report is filed—i.e., each person required to sign the schedule itself—including each member of a group. Do not include the name of a person required to be identified in the report but who is not a reporting person. Reporting persons are also requested to furnish their I.R.S. identification numbers, although disclosure of such numbers is voluntary, not mandatory (see "SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLYING WITH SCHEDULE 13G", below).
- (2) If any of the shares beneficially owned by a reporting person are held as a member of a group and that membership is expressly affirmed, please check row 2(a). If the reporting person disclaims membership in a group or describes a relationship with other person but does not affirm the existence of a group, please check row 2(b) [unless it is a joint filing pursuant to Rule 13d-1(k)(1) in which case it may not be necessary to check row 2(b)].
- (3) The third row is for SEC internal use; please leave blank.
- (4) Citizenship or Place of Organization--Furnish citizenship if the named reporting person is a natural person. Otherwise, furnish place of organization.

- (5)-(9), Aggregated Amount Beneficially Owned By Each Reporting Person, etc.--(11) Rows (5) through (9) inclusive, and (11) are to be completed in accordance with the provisions of Item 4 of Schedule 13G. All percentages are to be rounded off to the nearest tenth (one place after decimal point).
- (10) Check if the aggregate amount reported as beneficially owned in row 9 does not include shares as to which beneficial ownership is disclaimed pursuant to Rule 13d-4 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
- (12) Type of Reporting Person--Please classify each "reporting person" according to the following breakdown (see Item 3 of Schedule 13G) and place the appropriate symbol on the form:

Category	Symbol
Broker Dealer	BD
Bank	BK
Insurance Company	IC
Investment Company	IV
Investment Advisor	IA
Employee Benefit Plan, Pension Fund, or Endowment Fund	EP
Parent Holding Company	HC
Corporation	CO
Partnership	PN
Individual	IN
Other	00

#### Notes:

Attach as many copies of the second part of the cover page as are needed, one reporting person per page.

Filing persons may, in order to avoid unnecessary duplication, answer items on the schedules (Schedule 13D, 13G, or 14D-1) by appropriate cross references to an item or items on the cover page(s). This approach may only be used where the cover page item or items provide all the disclosure required by the schedule item. Moreover, such a use of a cover page item will result in the item becoming a part of the schedule and accordingly being considered as "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section of the Act.

Reporting persons may comply with their cover page filing requirements by filing either completed copies of the blank forms available from the Commission, printed or typed facsimiles, or computer printed facsimiles, provided the documents filed have identical formats to the forms prescribed in the Commission's regulations and meet existing Securities Exchange Act rules as to such matters as clarity and size (Securities Exchange Act Rule 12b-12).

#### SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLYING WITH SCHEDULE 13G

Under Sections 13(d), 13(g), and 23 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules and regulations thereunder, the Commission is authorized to solicit the information required to be supplied by this schedule by certain security holders of certain issuers.

Disclosure of the information specified in this schedule is mandatory, except for I.R.S. identification numbers disclosure of which is voluntary. The information will be used for the primary purpose of determining and disclosing the holdings of certain beneficial owners of certain equity securities. This statement will be made a matter of public record. Therefore, any information given will be available for inspection by any member of the public.

Because of the public nature of the information, the Commission can utilize it for a variety of purposes, including referral to other governmental authorities or securities self-regulatory organizations for investigatory purposes or in connection with litigation involving the Federal securities laws or other civil, criminal or regulatory statues or provisions. I.R.S. identification numbers, if furnished, will assist the commission in identifying security holders and, therefore, in promptly processing statements of beneficial ownership of securities.

Failure to disclose the information requested by this schedule, except for I.R.S. identification numbers, may result in civil or criminal action against the persons involved for violation of the Federal securities laws and rules promulgated thereunder.

#### GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

- A. Statements filed pursuant to Rule 13d-1(b) containing the information required by this schedule shall be filed not later than February 14 following the calendar year covered by the statement or within the time specified in Rules 13d-1(b)(2) and 13d-2(c). Statements filed pursuant to Rule 13d-1(c) shall be filed within the time specified in Rules 13d-1(c), 13d-2(b) and 13d-2(d). Statements filed pursuant to Rule 13d-1(d) shall be filed not later than February 14 following the calendar year covered by the statement pursuant to Rules 13d-1(d) and 13d-2(b).
- B. Information contained in a form which is required to be filed by rules under Section 13(f) for the same calendar year as that covered by a statement on this schedule may be incorporated by reference in response to any of the items of this schedule. If such information is incorporated by reference in this schedule, copies of the relevant pages of such form shall be filed as an exhibit to this schedule.
- C. The item numbers and captions of the items shall be included but the text of the items is to be omitted. The answers to the items shall be so prepared as to indicate clearly the coverage of the items without referring to the text of the items. Answer every item. If an item is inapplicable or the answer is in the negative, so state.

#### Item 1

- (a) Name of Issuer BRINKER INTERNATIONAL, INC.
- (b) Address of Issuer's Principal Executive Offices 6820 LBJ Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75240

#### Item 2

- (a) Name of Person Filing EARNEST Partners, LLC
- (b) Address of Principal Business Office or, if none, Residence 1180 Peachtree Street NE, Suite 2300, Atlanta, Georgia 30309
- (c) Citizenship State of Georgia
- (d) Title of Class of Securities Common Stock
- (e) CUSIP Number 109641100
- Item 3. If this statement is filed pursuant to 13d-1(b) or 13d-2(b) or (c), check whether the person filing is a:

- (a) [ ] Broker or dealer registered under section 15 of the Act
- (b) [ ] Bank as defined in section 3(a)(6) of the Act
- (c) [ ] Insurance company as defined in section 3(a)(19) of the Act
- (d) [ ] Investment company registered under section 8 of the Investment Company Act of 1940
- (e) [X] An investment adviser in accordance with Rule 13d-1(b)(1)(ii)(E);
- (f) [ ] An employee benefit plan or endowment fund in accordance with Rule 13d-1 (b) (1) (ii) (F);
- (g) [ ] A parent holding company or control person in accordance with Rule 13d-1(b)(1)(ii)(G);
- (h) [ ] A savings associations as defined in Section 3(b) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (12 U.S.C. 1813);
- (i) [ ] A church plan that is excluded from the definition of an investment company under section 3(c)(14) of the Investment Company Act of 1940
- (j) [ ] Group, in accordance with Rule 13d-1(b)(1)(ii)(J).

#### Item 4. Ownership.

Provide the following information regarding the aggregate number and percentage of the class of securities of the issuer identified in Item 1.

- (a) Amount beneficially owned: 5,100,797
- (b) Percent of class: 5.0%
- (c) Number of shares as to which the person has:
  - (i) Sole power to vote or to direct the vote 2,226,228
  - (ii) Shared power to vote or to direct the vote 1,293,721
  - (iii) Sole power to dispose or to direct the disposition of 5,100,797
  - (iv) Shared power to dispose or to direct the disposition of  $\,$  0

Instruction. For computations regarding securities which represent a right to acquire an underlying security see 13d-3(d)(1).

Item 5. Ownership of Five Percent or Less of a Class.

If this statement is being filed to report the fact that as of the date hereof the reporting person has ceased to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of the class of securities, check the following: [X]

Instruction: Dissolution of a group requires a response to this item.

Item 6. Ownership of More than Five Percent on Behalf of Another Person.

EARNEST Partners, LLC is filing as an investment adviser in accordance with 240.13d-1(b)(1)(ii)(E). No client interest relates to more than five percent

of the class.

If any other person is known to have the right to receive or the power to direct the receipt of dividends from, or the proceeds from the sale of, such securities, a statement to that effect should be included in response to this item, and if such interest relates to more than five percent of the class, such person should be identified. A listing of the shareholders of an investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or the beneficiaries of the employee benefit plan, pension fund or endowment fund is not required.

Item 7. Identification and Classification of the Subsidiary Which Acquired the Security Being Reported on by the Parent Holding Company.

Not Applicable

If a parent holding company has filed this schedule, pursuant to Rule 13d- 1(b) (ii) (G), so indicate under Item 3(g) and attach an exhibit stating the identity and the Item 3 classification of the relevant subsidiary. If a parent holding company has filed this schedule pursuant to Rule 13d-1(c) or Rule 13d-1(d), attach an exhibit stating the identification of the relevant subsidiary.

Item 8. Identification and Classification of Members of the Group.

Not Applicable

If a group has filed this schedule pursuant to 13d-1(b)(1)(ii)(J), so indicate under Item 3(j) and attach an exhibit stating the identity and Item 3 classification of each member of the group. If a group has filed this schedule pursuant to Rule 13d-1(c) or Rule 13d-1(d), attach an exhibit stating the identity of each member of the group.

Item 9. Notice of Dissolution of a Group

Not Applicable

Notice of dissolution of a group may be furnished as an exhibit stating the date of the dissolution and that all further filings with respect to transactions in the security reported on will be filed, if required, by members of the group, in their individual capacity. See Item 5.

Item 10. Certification

(a) The following certification shall be included if the statement is filed pursuant to Rule 13d-1(b):

By signing below I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the securities referred to above were acquired and are held in the ordinary course of business and were not acquired and are not held for the purpose of or with the effect of changing or influencing the control of the issuer of the securities and were not acquired and are not held in connection with or as a participant in any transaction having that purpose or effect.

(b) The following certification shall be included if the statement is filed pursuant to Rule 13d-1(c):

By signing below I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the securities referred to above were not acquired and are not held for the purpose of or with the effect of changing or influencing the control of the issuer of the securities and were not acquired and are not held in connection with or as a

participant in any transaction having that purpose or effect.

#### SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this statement is true, complete and correct.

August 10, 2009

Date

/s/ James M. Wilson

Signature

James M. Wilson

Chief Compliance Officer

Name/Title

The original statement shall be signed by each person on whose behalf the statement is filed or his authorized representative. If the statement is signed on behalf of a person by his authorized representative other than an executive officer or general partner of the filing person, evidence of the representative's authority to sign on behalf of such person shall be filed with the statement, provided, however, that a power of attorney for this purpose which is already on file with the Commission may be incorporated by reference. The name and any title of each person who signs the statement shall be typed or printed beneath his signature.

NOTE: Schedules filed in paper format shall include a signed original and five copies of the schedule, including all exhibits. See Rule 13d-7 for other parties for whom copies are to be sent.

Attention: Intentional misstatements or omissions of fact constitute Federal criminal violations (See 18 U.S.C. 1001)

ACN/Form 13G (C) 2006: Advisor Consultant Network, Inc.

ize:10pt;">HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC. AND HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P.

# QUARTERLY REPORT FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2018 TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
PART I—	<u>-FINANCIAL INFORMATIO</u> N	
ITEM 1.	Financial Statements of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.	
	Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2018 (unaudited) and December 31, 2017	<u>5</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited) for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and	6
	<u>2017</u>	<u>U</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited) for the three months ended March 31	<u> </u>
	2018 and 2017	<u>/</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2018 (unaudited) and year	0
	ended December 31, 2017	<u>o</u>

	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited) for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and	Λ
	<u>2017</u>	9
ITEM 1.	Financial Statements of Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.	
	Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2018 (unaudited) and December 31, 2017	<u>10</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited) for the three months ended March 30, 2018 and	11
	<u>2017</u>	<u>11</u>
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited) for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and 2017	12
	2018 and 2017	12
	Consolidated Statements of Capital for the three months ended March 31, 2018 (unaudited) and year	<u>13</u>
	ended December 31, 2017	13
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited) for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and	1.4
	<u>2017</u>	<u>14</u>
	Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	<u>15</u>
ITEM 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>39</u>
ITEM 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u>54</u>
ITEM 4.	Controls and Procedures	<u>54</u>
PART II–	<u>–OTHER INFORMATIO</u> N	
ITEM 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	<u>56</u>
ITEM 1A	. Risk Factors	<u>56</u>
ITEM 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u>56</u>
ITEM 3.	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	<u>57</u>
ITEM 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	<u>57</u>
ITEM 5.	Other Information	<u>57</u>
ITEM 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	<u>58</u>
	<u>Signatures</u>	<u>59</u>

# **Table of Contents**

PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC.

HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)

	March 31, 2018 (unaudited)	December 31, 2017
ASSETS	<b>\$ 6 400 202</b>	A C 100 111
Investment in real estate, at cost	\$6,499,393	
Accumulated depreciation and amortization	(574,814)	
Investment in real estate, net	5,924,579	5,889,943
Cash and cash equivalents	64,080	78,922
Restricted cash	10,900	22,358
Accounts receivable, net	5,945	4,363
Straight-line rent receivables, net	119,436	109,457
Deferred leasing costs and lease intangible assets, net	241,912	244,554
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net	69,735	61,138
Assets associated with real estate held for sale	11,704	211,335
TOTAL ASSETS	\$6,448,291	\$6,622,070
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		
Notes payable, net	\$2,240,688	\$2,421,380
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	146,588	163,107
Lease intangible liabilities, net	45,651	49,930
Security deposits and prepaid rent	65,692	64,031
Derivative liabilities	_	265
Liabilities associated with real estate held for sale	630	2,216
TOTAL LIABILITIES	2,499,249	2,700,929
6.25% Series A cumulative redeemable preferred units of the operating partnership	10,177	10,177
EQUITY		
Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. stockholders' equity:		
Common stock, \$0.01 par value, 490,000,000 authorized, 155,626,055 shares and	1 556	1 556
155,602,508 shares outstanding at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively	1,556	1,556
Additional paid-in capital	3,625,673	3,622,988
Accumulated other comprehensive income	22,936	13,227
Retained earnings	9,500	
Total Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. stockholders' equity	3,659,665	3,637,771
Non-controlling interest—members in consolidated entities	263,556	258,602
Non-controlling interest—units in the operating partnership	15,644	14,591
TOTAL EQUITY	3,938,865	3,910,964
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	\$6,448,291	\$6,622,070
-	•	•

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

# Table of Contents

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited, in thousands, except share data)

	Three M	Ionths Ended I	2017			
REVENUES	2010			2017		
Office						
Rental	\$	130,082		\$	133,516	
Tenant recoveries	20,904	•		17,401	•	
Parking and other	5,546			5,899		
Total Office revenues	156,532			156,816		
Studio						
Rental	10,383			6,685		
Tenant recoveries	354			665		
Other property-related	6 125			4.042		
revenue	6,435			4,042		
Other	414			77		
Total Studio revenues	17,586			11,469		
TOTAL REVENUES	174,118			168,285		
OPERATING EXPENSES						
Office operating expenses	53,240			47,954		
Studio operating expenses	9,664			7,251		
General and administrative	15,564			13,810		
Depreciation and	60,553			70,767		
amortization	00,333			70,707		
TOTAL OPERATING	139,021			139,782		
EXPENSES	137,021			137,702		
INCOME FROM	35,097			28,503		
OPERATIONS	33,077			20,303		
OTHER EXPENSE						
(INCOME)						
Interest expense	20,503			21,930		
Interest income	(9		)	(30		)
Unrealized gain on						
ineffective portion of	_			(6		)
derivatives						
Transaction-related	118			_		
expenses						
Other income	(404		)	(678		)
TOTAL OTHER	20,208			21,216		
EXPENSES	,			,		
INCOME BEFORE	4.4.000					
GAINS ON SALE OF	14,889			7,287		
REAL ESTATE	27.67.4			16066		
Gains on sale of real estate	-			16,866		
NET INCOME	52,563		`	24,153		`
	(159		)	(159		)

Net income attributable to preferred stock and units						
Net income attributable to participating securities	(327		)	(240		)
Net income attributable to	(2.222		`	(2.027		,
non-controlling interest in consolidated entities	(3,323		)	(3,037		)
Net income attributable to						
non-controlling interest in	(177		)	(202		)
the operating partnership						
Net income attributable to						
Hudson Pacific Properties,	\$	48,577		\$	20,515	
Inc. common stockholders						
Basic and diluted per share	;					
amounts:						
Net income attributable to	\$	0.31		\$	0.14	
common stockholders—ba	sic	0.51		Ψ	0.17	
Net income attributable to						
common	\$	0.31		\$	0.14	
stockholders—diluted						
Weighted average shares of	f					
common stock	155,626	5,055		147,950	,594	
outstanding—basic						
Weighted average shares o	f					
common stock	156,714	1,822		149,950	,346	
outstanding—diluted						
Dividends declared per	\$	0.25		¢	0.25	
share	Φ	0.25		\$	0.25	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 6

# Table of Contents

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (unaudited, in thousands)

	Three Mo	onths	
	Ended Ma	arch 31,	
	2018	2017	
Net income	\$52,563	\$24,153	
Other comprehensive income: change in fair value of derivatives	9,513	2,864	
Comprehensive income	62,076	27,017	
Comprehensive income attributable to preferred stock and units	(159)	(159	)
Comprehensive income attributable to participating securities	(391)	(240	)
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interest in consolidated entities	(3,323)	(3,037	)
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interest in the operating partnership	(211)	(230	)
Comprehensive income attributable to Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. common stockholders	\$57,992	\$23,351	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

# Table of Contents

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(unaudited, in thousands, except share data)

Hudson Pacific Proper	ties, Inc. Stockholder	s' Equity
-----------------------	------------------------	-----------

	Truuson Faci	nc Frope	erues, mc. s	lockilolucis	Equity				
	Shares of Common Stock	Stock Amoun	Additional Paid-in Capital	Retained Earnings (Accumula Deficit)	Accumulate Other Comprehen (Loss) Income	Interest I	Interest—Minits in Consolidated	embers Total Equit	t <b>y</b>
Balance at January 1, 2017	136,492,235	\$1,364	\$3,109,394	\$ (16,971	) \$ 9,496	\$294,859	\$ 304,608	\$3,702,750	)
Contributions Distributions Proceeds from sale		_	_			_	3,870 (74,836	3,870 ) (74,836	)
of common stock, net of underwriters' discount and transaction costs	18,656,575	187	647,195	_	_	_	_	647,382	
Issuance of unrestricted stock Shares withheld to	917,086	9	(9	)—	_	_	_	_	
satisfy tax	(463,388	)(4	)(16,037	)—	_	_	_	(16,041	)
withholding Declared dividend	_	_	(106,269	)(51,619	)—	(656	)—	(158,544	)
Amortization of stock-based compensation	_	_	13,249	_	_	2,666	_	15,915	
Net income	_	_	_	68,590		375	24,960	93,925	
Change in fair value of derivatives	<del>.</del>	_	_	_	7,353	45	_	7,398	
Redemption of common units in the operating partnership	e	_	(24,535	)—	(3,622	(282,698	)—	(310,855	)
Balance at December 31, 2017 Cumulative	155,602,508	1,556	3,622,988	_	13,227	14,591	258,602	3,910,964	
adjustment related to adoption of ASU 2017-12	_	_	_	(231	) 230	1	_	_	
Contributions	_	_	_	_		_	2,691	2,691	
Distributions Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of underwriters'	_	_	— (173	_ )_	_	_	(1,060	) (1,060 (173	)
not of anact writers									

discount and transaction costs									
Issuance of unrestricted stock	43,900	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	
Shares withheld to satisfy tax	(20,353	)—	(693	)—	_	_	_	(693	)
withholding									
Declared dividend		_	_	(39,173	)—	(178	)—	(39,351	)
Amortization of stock-based compensation	_	_	3,551	_	_	1,019	_	4,570	
Net income				48,904	_	177	3,323	52,404	
Change in fair valu of derivatives	e		_	_	9,479	34	_	9,513	
Balance at March 31, 2018	155,626,055	\$1,556	\$3,625,673	\$ 9,500	\$ 22,936	\$15,644	\$ 263,556	\$3,938,865	5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

# Table of Contents

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited, in thousands)

	Three Mo	onths Ende	d
	March 31	*	
	2018	2017	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Net income	\$52,563	\$24,153	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:			
Depreciation and amortization	60,553	70,767	
Non-cash portion of interest expense	1,658		
Amortization of stock-based compensation	4,338	3,902	
Straight-line rents	(9,942)		
Straight-line rent expenses	136	381	
Amortization of above- and below-market leases, net	(3,811)	(5,732	)
Amortization of above- and below-market ground lease, net	624	637	
Amortization of lease incentive costs	303	379	
Other non-cash adjustments <sup>(1)</sup>	256	539	
Gains on sale of real estate	(37,674)	(16,866	)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:			
Accounts receivable	(1,782)	4,650	
Deferred leasing costs and lease intangibles	(6,614)		)
Prepaid expenses and other assets	3,313	(1,072	)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	(33)	12,378	
Security deposits and prepaid rent	559	(5,313	)
Net cash provided by operating activities	64,447	85,720	
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Additions to investment property	(103,512)	(76,225	)
Proceeds from sale of real estate	237,004	81,707	
Contributions to unconsolidated entity		(1,071	)
Deposits for property acquisitions		(56,323	)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	133,492	(51,912	)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Proceeds from notes payable	130,000	_	
Payments of notes payable	(308,529)	(300,642	)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net	(173)	647,675	
Payment for redemption of common units in the operating partnership		(310,855	)
Distributions paid to common stock and unitholders	(39,351)	(39,919	)
Distributions paid to preferred unitholders	(159)	(159	)
Contributions from non-controlling member in consolidated entities	2,691	103	
Distributions to non-controlling member in consolidated entities	(1,060)	(310	)
Payments to satisfy tax withholding	(693)	(4,203	)
Payments of loan costs	(6,965)		
Net cash used in financing activities	(224,239)		)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash	(26,300)	25,498	
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash—beginning of period	101,280	108,192	
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash—end of period	\$74,980	\$133,690	1

# SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest \$12,915 \$16,172

NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities for real estate investments \$20,462 \$3,501

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

<sup>(1)</sup> Represents bad debt expense/recovery and unrealized loss/gain on ineffective portion of derivative instruments.

# Table of Contents

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P.

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except unit data)

ASSETS	March 31, 2018 (unaudited)	December 31, 2017
Investment in real estate, at cost	\$6,499,393	\$6,423,441
Accumulated depreciation and amortization	(574,814)	
Investment in real estate, net	5,924,579	5,889,943
Cash and cash equivalents	64,080	78,922
Restricted cash	10,900	22,358
Accounts receivable, net	5,945	4,363
Straight-line rent receivables, net	119,436	109,457
Deferred leasing costs and lease intangible assets, net	241,912	244,554
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net	69,735	61,138
Assets associated with real estate held for sale	11,704	211,335
TOTAL ASSETS	\$6,448,291	•
1011121100210	φο, πο,201	φ 0,022,070
LIABILITIES		
Notes payable, net	\$2,240,688	\$ 2,421,380
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	146,588	163,107
Lease intangible liabilities, net	45,651	49,930
Security deposits and prepaid rent	65,692	64,031
Derivative liabilities		265
Liabilities associated with real estate held for sale	630	2,216
TOTAL LIABILITIES	2,499,249	2,700,929
6.25% Series A cumulative redeemable preferred units of the operating partnership	10,177	10,177
CAPITAL		
Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. partners' capital:		
Common units, 156,195,100 and 156,171,553 issued and outstanding at March 31, 2018	2 (52 200	2 (20 00)
and December 31, 2017, respectively.	3,652,289	3,639,086
Accumulated other comprehensive income	23,020	13,276
Total Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. partners' capital	3,675,309	3,652,362
Non-controlling interest—members in consolidated entities	263,556	258,602
TOTAL CAPITAL	3,938,865	3,910,964
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL	\$6,448,291	\$6,622,070

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

# Table of Contents

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited, in thousands, except unit data)

	Three Mor March 31,	nths Ended
	2018	2017
REVENUES		
Office		
Rental	\$130,082	\$ 133,516
Tenant recoveries	20,904	17,401
Parking and other	5,546	5,899
Total Office revenues	156,532	156,816
Studio		
Rental	10,383	6,685
Tenant recoveries	354	665
Other property-related revenue	6,435	4,042
Other	414	77
Total Studio revenues	17,586	11,469
TOTAL REVENUES	174,118	168,285
OPERATING EXPENSES		
Office operating expenses	53,240	47,954
Studio operating expenses	9,664	7,251
General and administrative	15,564	13,810
Depreciation and amortization	60,553	70,767
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES	139,021	139,782
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS	35,097	28,503
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME)		
Interest expense	20,503	21,930
Interest income	(9)	(30)
Unrealized gain on ineffective portion of derivatives	_	(6)
Transaction-related expenses	118	
Other income	(404)	(678)
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES	20,208	21,216
INCOME BEFORE GAINS ON SALE OF REAL ESTATE	14,889	7,287
Gains on sale of real estate	37,674	16,866
NET INCOME	52,563	24,153
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest in consolidated entities	(3,323)	(3,037)
Net income attributable to Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.	49,240	21,116
Net income attributable to preferred units	(159)	(159)
Net income attributable to participating securities	(327)	(240 )
Net income available to common unitholders	\$48,754	\$ 20,717
Basic and diluted per unit amounts:		
Net income attributable to common unitholders—basic	\$0.31	\$ 0.14
Net income attributable to common unitholders—diluted	\$0.31	\$ 0.14
Weighted average shares of common units outstanding—basic	156,195,10	00149,407,796
Weighted average shares of common units outstanding—diluted	157,283,86	57150,334,796
Dividends declared per unit	\$0.25	\$ 0.25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 11

# Table of Contents

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (unaudited, in thousands)

	Three Mo	onths	
	Ended Ma	arch 31,	
	2018	2017	
Net income	\$52,563	\$24,153	
Other comprehensive income: change in fair value of derivatives	9,513	2,864	
Comprehensive income	62,076	27,017	
Comprehensive income attributable to preferred units	(159)	(159	)
Comprehensive income attributable to participating securities	(391)	(240	)
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interest in consolidated entities	(3,323)	(3,037	)
Comprehensive income attributable to Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. partners' capital	\$58,203	\$23,581	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

# Table of Contents

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITAL

(unaudited, in thousands, except unit data)

Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Partners' Capital

	Cupitai						
	Number of Common Units	Common Units	Accumulated Other Comprehensi (Loss) Income	Total	Non-controllin Interest—Mer in Consolidated Entities	ng nbers Total Capital	
Balance at January 1, 2017	145,942,855	\$3,392,264		\$3,398,142	\$ 304,608	\$3,702,750	)
Contributions		<del></del>	<del></del>		3,870	3,870	
Distributions						(74,836	)
Proceeds from sale of common							ĺ
units, net of underwriters' discount and transaction costs	18,656,575	647,382	_	647,382	_	647,382	
Issuance of unrestricted units	917,086	_		_		_	
Units withheld to satisfy tax withholding	(463,388	)(16,041	)—	(16,041	)—	(16,041	)
Declared distributions	_	(158,544	)—	(158,544	)—	(158,544	)
Amortization of unit-based compensation	_	15,915	_	15,915	_	15,915	
Net income		68,965	_	68,965	24,960	93,925	
Change in fair value of derivative instruments	_	_	7,398	7,398	_	7,398	
Redemption of common units	(8,881,575	)(310,855	)—	(310,855	)—	(310,855	)
Balance at December 31, 2017	156,171,553	3,639,086	13,276	3,652,362	258,602	3,910,964	
Cumulative adjustment related to adoption of ASU 2017-12		(231	)231	_	_	_	
Contributions				_	2,691	2,691	
Distributions	_			_	(1,060	(1,060	)
Proceeds from sale of common							
units, net of underwriters' discount		(173	)—	(173	)—	(173	)
and transaction costs							
Issuance of unrestricted units	43,900	_	_	_	_	_	
Units withheld to satisfy tax	(20,353	)(693	)—	(693	)—	(693	)
withholding Declared distributions		(20.251	,	(20.251	`	(20.251	`
Amortization of unit-based	_	(39,351	)—	(39,351	)—	(39,351	)
compensation	_	4,570		4,570		4,570	
Net income		49,081		49,081	3,323	52,404	
Change in fair value of derivative		17,001			3,323		
instruments		_	9,513	9,513	_	9,513	
Balance at March 31, 2018	156,195,100	\$3,652,289	\$ 23,020	\$3,675,309	\$ 263,556	\$3,938,865	5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

# Table of Contents

# HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited, in thousands)

	Three Mo	onths Ended	d
	2018	2017	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Net income	\$52,563	\$24,153	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:			
Depreciation and amortization	60,553	70,767	
Non-cash portion of interest expense	1,658	1,186	
Amortization of unit-based compensation	4,338	3,902	
Straight-line rents	(9,942)	2,366	
Straight-line rent expenses	136	381	
Amortization of above- and below-market leases, net	(3,811)	(5,732	)
Amortization of above- and below-market ground lease, net	624	637	
Amortization of lease incentive costs	303	379	
Other non-cash adjustments <sup>(1)</sup>	256	539	
Gains on sale of real estate	(37,674)	(16,866	)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:			
Accounts receivable	(1,782)	4,650	
Deferred leasing costs and lease intangibles	(6,614)	(6,635	)
Prepaid expenses and other assets	3,313	(1,072	)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	(33)	12,378	
Security deposits and prepaid rent	559	(5,313	)
Net cash provided by operating activities	64,447	85,720	
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Additions to investment property	(103,512)	(76,225	)
Proceeds from sale of real estate	237,004	81,707	
Contributions to unconsolidated entity		(1,071	)
Deposits for property acquisitions		(56,323	)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	133,492	(51,912	)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
Proceeds from notes payable	130,000	_	
Payments of notes payable	(308,529)	(300,642	)
Proceeds from issuance of common units, net	(173)	647,675	
Payments for redemption of common units		(310,855	)
Distributions paid to common unitholders	(39,351)	(39,919	)
Distributions paid to preferred unitholders	(159)	(159	)
Contributions from non-controlling member in consolidated entities	2,691	103	
Distributions to non-controlling member in consolidated entities	(1,060)	(310	)
Payments to satisfy tax withholding	(693)	(4,203	)
Payments of loan costs	(6,965)	_	
Net cash used in financing activities	(224,239)	(8,310	)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash	(26,300)	25,498	
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash—beginning of period	101,280	108,192	

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash—end of period \$74,980 \$133,690

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest \$12,915 \$16,172

NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities for real estate investments \$20,462 \$3,501

(1) Represents bad debt expense/recovery and unrealized loss/gain on ineffective portion of derivative instruments.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage, share and unit data)

#### 1. Organization

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. is a Maryland corporation formed on November 9, 2009 as a fully integrated, self-administered and self-managed real estate investment trust ("REIT"). Through its controlling interest in the operating partnership and its subsidiaries, Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. owns, manages, leases, acquires and develops real estate, consisting primarily of office and studio properties. Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context requires otherwise, all references in these financial statements to "the Company" refer to Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. together with its consolidated subsidiaries, including Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context requires otherwise, all references to "our operating partnership" or "the operating partnership" refer to Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. together with its consolidated subsidiaries.

On April 1, 2015, the Company completed the acquisition of the EOP Northern California Portfolio ("EOP Acquisition") from Blackstone Real Estate Partners V and VI ("Blackstone"). The EOP Acquisition consisted of 26 high-quality office assets totaling approximately 8.2 million square feet and two development parcels located throughout Northern California. The total consideration paid for the EOP Acquisition before certain credits, prorations and closing costs included a cash payment of \$1.75 billion and an aggregate of 63,474,791 shares of common stock of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and common units in the operating partnership.

The Company's portfolio consists of properties located throughout Northern and Southern California and the Pacific Northwest. The following table summarizes the Company's portfolio as of March 31, 2018:

Segments	Number of Properties	Square Feet (unaudited)
Office	51	13,398,362
Studio	3	1,204,927
Total <sup>(1)</sup>	54	14,603,289

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes redevelopment, development and held for sale properties.

# 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

#### **Basis of Presentation**

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company and the operating partnership are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("GAAP") applicable to interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Certain information and footnote disclosures required for annual financial statements have been condensed or excluded pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") rules and regulations. Accordingly, the interim financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, the accompanying interim financial statements reflect all adjustments of a normal and recurring nature that are considered necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim periods presented.

The results of operations for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ended December 31, 2018. The interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements in the 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and

Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. and the notes thereto.

# Principles of Consolidation

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of the Company, the operating partnership and all wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements of the operating partnership include the accounts of the operating partnership and all wholly owned and controlled subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

Under the consolidation guidance, the Company first evaluates an entity using the variable interest model, then the voting model. The Company ultimately consolidates all entities that the Company controls through either majority ownership or voting rights, including all variable interest entities ("VIEs") of which the Company is considered the primary beneficiary. The Company accounts for all other unconsolidated joint ventures using the cost or equity method of accounting. In addition, the Company continually evaluates each legal entity that is not wholly owned for reconsideration based on changing circumstances.

VIEs are defined as entities in which equity investors do not have:

the characteristics of a controlling financial interest;

sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties; and/or

the entity is structured with non-substantive voting rights.

The entity that consolidates a VIE is known as its primary beneficiary and is generally the entity with both the power to direct the activities that most significantly affect the VIE's economic performance and the right to receive benefits from the VIE or the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE that could be significant to the VIE. As of March 31, 2018, the Company has determined that four joint ventures and our operating partnership met the definition of a VIE. Three of the joint ventures are consolidated entities and one joint venture is a non-consolidated entity.

#### **Consolidated Entities**

As of March 31, 2018, the operating partnership has determined that three of its joint ventures met the definition of a VIE and are consolidated:

Entity	Property	Ownership Interest	t
Hudson 1455 Market, L.P.	1455 Market	55.0	%
Hudson 1099 Stewart, L.P.	Hill7	55.0	%
HPP-MAC WSP, LLC	Westside Pavilion <sup>(1)</sup>	75.0	%

<sup>(1)</sup> As of March 31, 2018, this joint venture was formed but no significant contributions of cash or property have been made by the partners.

On March 1, 2018, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement with Macerich WSP, LLC ("Macerich") to form HPP-MAC WSP, LLC ("HPP-MAC JV") to redevelop Westside Pavilion, a shopping mall in West Los Angeles, into approximately 500,000 square feet of state-of-the-art creative office space, with approximately 100,000 square feet of existing retail and entertainment space. The HPP-MAC JV is held 75% by the Company and 25% by Macerich, with the Company serving as the managing member and developer. As of March 31, 2018, the assets held by the HPP-MAC JV include pre-development costs and the initial contributions from the members. Pursuant to the joint venture agreement, it is anticipated that the Company and Macerich will enter into a contribution agreement within a year to contribute Westside Pavilion to the joint venture. The contribution is valued at approximately \$190.0 million before certain credits, prorations, closing costs and debt assumption. Total costs of the HPP-MAC JV will be funded 75% by the Company and 25% by Macerich. If either party defaults on its obligation to contribute to the joint venture, the defaulting party is required to pay a \$25.0 million fee to the other member. The joint venture agreement lacks

substantive participating or kick-out rights and is therefore a VIE. The Company, through its subsidiaries, has the right to (i) receive benefits and absorb losses and (ii) has the power to direct the activities that most significantly affect the joint venture.

As of March 31, 2018, the Company has determined that its operating partnership met the definition of a VIE and is consolidated. Substantially all of the assets and liabilities of the Company are related to VIEs.

#### Non-consolidated Entities

On June 16, 2016, the Company entered into a joint venture to co-originate a loan secured by land in Santa Clara, California. The assets of the joint venture consist of notes receivable. As of March 31, 2018, the Company has determined it is not the primary beneficiary of the joint venture that meets the definition of a VIE. Due to its significant influence over the non-

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

consolidated entity, the Company accounts for it using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the Company initially records the investment at cost and subsequently adjusts for equity in earnings or losses and cash contributions and distributions. The Company's net equity investment is reflected within prepaid expenses and other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets which represents the Company's maximum exposure for loss. The Company's share of net income or loss from the entity is included within other income on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company owns 21% of the non-consolidated entity.

#### Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of commitments and contingencies at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to acquiring, developing and assessing the carrying values of its real estate properties, its accrued liabilities and its performance-based equity compensation awards. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience, current market conditions and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could materially differ from these estimates.

#### Revenue Recognition

The Company has compiled an inventory of its sources of revenues and has identified the following material revenue streams: (i) rental revenues (ii) tenant recoveries (iii) ancillary revenues (iv) guest parking revenues and (v) sale of real estate.

Stream	Components	Financial Statement Location
Rental revenues	Office rentals, stage rentals and storage rentals	Office and Studio Segments: rental
Tenant recoveries	Reimbursement of real estate taxes, insurance, repairs and maintenance, other operating expenses and monthly parking revenues	Office Segment: tenant recoveries and parking and other Studio Segment: tenant recoveries and other property-related revenue
Ancillary revenues	Revenues derived from tenants' use of lighting, equipment rental, power, HVAC and telecommunications (i.e., telephone and internet)	Studio Segment: other property-related revenue
Guest parking revenues	Parking revenue that is not associated with lease agreements	Office Segment: parking and other Studio Segment: other property-related revenue
Sale of real estate	Gains on sales derived from cash consideration less cost basis	Gains on sale of real estate

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

Currently rental revenues are accounted for under ASC 840, Leases. Rental revenues will be accounted for under ASC 842, Leases ("ASC 842"), which the Company plans to adopt on January 1, 2019.

Currently tenant recoveries are accounted for under ASC 605, Revenue Recognition ("ASC 605"). Tenant recoveries will be accounted for under ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASC 606"), on January 1, 2019, when the Company adopts ASC 842. Under the current ASC 842 guidance, the Company would be required to classify its tenant recoveries into lease and non-lease components. On March 28, 2018, the FASB agreed to issue an amendment to ASC 842, which if elected, permits the Company to classify tenant recoveries as a single lease component and accounted for with rental revenues in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Please refer to our Update on ASC 842 implementation section below for details.

Ancillary revenues and guest parking revenues have been accounted for under ASC 606 since the Company adopted this standard on January 1, 2018. This standard requires the Company to recognize revenues based on a five-step model and will result in the consideration being recognized once all performance obligations are satisfied. The timing and pattern of revenue recognition as it relates to ancillary revenues and guest parking revenues have not changed from those under ASC 605.

Sale of real estate has been accounted for under ASC 610, Other Income, since the Company adopted this standard on January 1, 2018. This standard requires the Company to apply certain recognition and measurement principles in ASC 606 when it derecognizes nonfinancial assets and in substance nonfinancial assets, and the counterparty is not a customer. This is the case for the Company's sales of real estate, and therefore, the Company is required to evaluate the sales of real estate based on transfer of control. If a real estate sale contract includes ongoing involvement by the seller with the sold property, the seller must evaluate each promised good or service under the contract to determine whether it represents a performance obligation, constitutes a guarantee or prevents the transfer of control. The timing and pattern of revenue recognition might change as it relates to gains of sale of real estate if the sale includes continued involvement that represents a separate performance obligation.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

#### **Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements**

Changes to GAAP are established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") in the form of Accounting Standards Update ("ASU"). The following ASUs were adopted by the Company in 2018:

Accounting Standards Update ("ASU"). The following ASUs were adopted by the Company in 2018:

Standard

Description

Effect on the Financial Statements or

ASU 2018-04.

Investments—Debt Securities (Topic 320) and Regulated Operations (Topic 980):
Amendments to SEC

Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 117 and SEC Release No. 33-9273 (SEC Update)

ASU 2018-03, Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments—Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments— Overall (Subtopic 825-10), Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities The guidance no longer allows the use of cost method of accounting for equity instruments that do not have a readily determinable fair value and Companies are now required to measure equity investments at fair value through net income. Companies are permitted to elect a measurement alternative that allows for measuring equity instruments at cost, less any impairment, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes, adjusted as of the date that an observable transaction takes place, rather than report date. For equity investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value, this guidance is adopted prospectively for all investments that exist as of the date of adoption. The guidance allows entities to use a prospective transition approach only for securities they elect to measure using the measurement alternative.

The guidance eliminates the requirement to separately measure and report hedge ineffectiveness and generally requires the entire change in the fair value of a hedging instrument to be presented in the same income statement line as the hedged item. Therefore, a cumulative effect adjustment related to elimination of ineffectiveness measurement is required to be recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption for cash flow hedge. The guidance also

The Company adopted this guidance during Q1 2018 using the prospective approach. The Company has elected to measure our equity instruments using the measurement alternative. Please see Note 12 for details.

Other Significant Matters

The Company adopted this guidance during Q1 2018 using the modified retrospective approach. As a result of the adoption, the concept of ineffectiveness from an accounting perspective is eliminated. Subsequent changes in fair value for a hedging instrument that has been designated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge will be recognized as a component in other comprehensive

ASU 2017-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting eases certain documentation and assessment requirements and modifies the accounting for components excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. This guidance must be applied using a modified retrospective approach.

The guidance clarifies when changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award must be accounted for as modifications. This guidance must be applied prospectively.

income. Additionally, the Company eliminated any previously recorded ineffectiveness with a cumulative effect adjustment. Please see Note 9 for details.

The Company adopted this guidance during Q1 2018 on a prospective basis. The adoption did not have an impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

#### Standard

ASU 2017-05, Other Income—Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets (Subtopic 610-20): Clarifying the Scope of **Asset Derecognition** Guidance and Accounting for Partial Sales of

ASU 2014-09, Revenue

Nonfinancial Assets

from Contracts with Customers amended by ASU 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with **Agent Considerations** (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net)

#### Description

The guidance updates the definition of an in substance the modified retrospective nonfinancial asset and clarifies the scope of ASC 610-20 on the sale or transfer of nonfinancial assets to noncustomers, including partial sales. It also clarifies the derecognition guidance for nonfinancial assets to conform with the new revenue recognition standard. Either a full or modified retrospective approach can be applied.

Issued on May 28, 2014, ASU 2014-09 outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenues arising from contracts with customers and specifically notes that lease contracts with customers are a scope exception. Issued on March 17, 2016, ASU 2016-08 clarifies certain aspects of the principal-versus-agent guidance in its new revenue recognition standard related to the determination of whether an entity is a Customers—Principal versus principal-versus-agent and the determination of the nature of each specified good or service. The guidance provides for practical expedients associated with the determination of whether a significant financing component exists and the expedient for recording an immediate expense for certain incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer.

Effect on the Financial Statements or Other Significant Matters

The Company adopted this guidance during Q1 2018 using approach. The Company has not had variable consideration in our sale of real estate, or partial sales of nonfinancial assets or contribution of a nonfinancial asset to form a joint venture with retained noncontrolling interest, therefore the guidance does not currently impact the Company.

The Company adopted this guidance during Q1 2018 using the modified retrospective approach and is using the practical expedients associated with expensing incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer with terms of one year or less. The adoption of this ASU did not result in any changes with respect to the timing and pattern of revenue recognition. Please refer to the revenue recognition paragraph above for the additional disclosures

#### Update on ASC 842 implementation

On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, to amend the accounting guidance for leases and set out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a lease agreement (i.e., lessees and lessors). This ASU is effective for annual reporting periods (including interim periods) beginning after December 15, 2018. A modified retrospective approach must be applied for leases that exist or are entered into after January 1, 2017, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the 2019 consolidated financial statements, with a cumulative adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (accumulated deficit) on January 1, 2017, and restatement of the amounts presented prior to January 1, 2019.

On March 28, 2018, the FASB agreed to issue an amendment to ASU 842 that would provide an entity the optional transition method to initially account for the impact of the adoption with a cumulative adjustment to retained earnings

(accumulated deficit) on the effective date of the ASU, January 1, 2019, rather than January 1, 2017, which would eliminate the need to restate amounts presented prior to January 1, 2019.

This guidance requires all lessees to record a lease liability at lease inception, with a corresponding right-of-use asset, except for short-term leases. Lessor accounting will not be fundamentally changed.

ASC 842 provides practical expedients that allow entities to not (i) reassess whether any expired or existing contracts are considered or contain leases; (ii) reassess the lease classification for any expired or existing leases; and (iii) reassess initial direct costs for any existing leases.

The Company plans to adopt the standard on January 1, 2019 and expects to elect the use of practical expedients. If the proposed amendment to ASU 842 is adopted, the Company would elect the transition method for adoption as described above.

#### Lessor Accounting

The Company recognized rental revenues and tenant recoveries of \$161.7 million and \$158.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017. This ASU requires companies to identify lease and non-lease components

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

of a lease agreement. Lease components relate to the right to use the leased asset and non-lease components relate to payments for goods or services that are transferred separately from the right to use the underlying asset. Total lease consideration is allocated to lease and non-lease components on a relative standalone basis. The recognition of revenues related to lease components will be governed by ASC 842 while revenue related to non-lease components will be subject to ASC 606.

Under current accounting standards, the Company recognizes rental revenue from tenants on a straight-line basis over the lease term when collectability is reasonably assured and the tenant has taken possession or controls the physical use of the leased asset. Tenant recoveries related to reimbursement of real estate taxes, insurance, repairs and maintenance and other operating expenses are recognized as revenue in the period during which the applicable expenses are incurred. The reimbursements are recognized and presented gross, as the Company is generally the primary obligor with respect to purchasing goods and services from third-party suppliers, have discretion in selecting the supplier and bear the associated credit risk.

In the March 28, 2018 FASB meeting, the FASB agreed to issue an amendment to ASC 842 which would allow lessors to elect, as a practical expedient, not to allocate the total consideration to lease and non-lease components based on their relative standalone selling prices. Once the amendment is adopted, this practical expedient will allow lessors to elect a combined single lease component presentation if (i) the timing and pattern of the transfer of the combined single lease component is the same, and (ii) the related lease component and, the combined single lease component would be classified as an operating lease.

The Company has not completed its analysis of this ASU. Once the amendments discussed during the March 28, 2018 FASB meeting are issued, adopted and elected, tenant recoveries that qualify as non-lease components will be combined under a single lease component presentation.

The ASU also requires lessors to capitalize only those costs that are defined as initial direct costs. Under the current accounting standards, the Company capitalizes initial direct and indirect leasing costs. During the three months ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the Company capitalized \$1.8 million and \$1.4 million of indirect leasing costs, respectively. Under this new ASU, these costs will be expensed as incurred.

## Lessee Accounting

As of March 31, 2018, the future undiscounted minimum lease payments under the Company's ground leases totaled \$449.3 million. This guidance requires lessees to record a lease liability at lease inception, with a corresponding right-of-use asset, except for short-term leases. The Company continues to evaluate the amount of right-of-use asset and lease liability that will ultimately be recorded with respect to its ground lease agreements, where it is the lessee.

#### Other recently issued ASUs

The Company considers the applicability and impact of all ASUs. The following table lists the recently issued ASUs that have not been disclosed in the Company's 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K and have not been adopted by the Company. The list excludes those ASUs that are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Standard Description Effective Date Effect on the Financial

ASU 2018-01, Leases (Topic 842): Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition to Topic 842

The amendments in this update permit an entity to elect an optional transition practical expedient to not evaluate under Topic 842 land easements that exist or expired before the entity's adoption of Topic 842 and that were not previously accounted for as leases under Topic 840. An entity that elects this practical expedient should apply Update 2016-02 the practical expedient consistently to all of its existing or (Effective for fiscal years evaluating the expired land easements that were not previously accounted for as leases under Topic 840. Once an entity adopts Topic 842, it should apply that Topic prospectively to all new (or modified) land easements to determine whether the arrangement should be accounted for as a lease.

Statements or Other Significant Matters

The effective date and transition requirements are the same as that in beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years.)

The Company is currently impact of this update.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

#### 3. Investment in Real Estate

Real estate held for investment

The following table summarizes the Company's investment in real estate, at cost as of:

	March 31,	December 31,
	2018	2017
Land	\$1,302,907	\$ 1,302,907
Building and improvements	4,476,124	4,480,993
Tenant improvements	425,624	411,706
Furniture and fixtures	8,371	8,608
Property under development	286,367	219,227
Investment in real estate, at cost <sup>(1)</sup>	\$6,499,393	\$ 6,423,441

<sup>(1)</sup> Excludes balances related to properties that have been classified as held for sale.

#### Acquisitions

The Company's acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method. The results of operations for each of these acquisitions are included in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations from the date of acquisition.

The Company evaluates each acquisition to determine if the integrated set of assets and activities acquired meet the definition of a business and need to be accounted for as a business combination in accordance with ASC 805, Business Combinations. An integrated set of assets and activities would fail to qualify as a business if either (i) substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in either a single identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable assets or (ii) the integrated set of assets and activities is lacking, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs (i.e., revenue generated before and after the transaction). An acquired process is considered substantive if (i) the process includes an organized workforce (or includes an acquired contract that provides access to an organized workforce) that is skilled, knowledgeable and experienced in performing the process, (ii) the process cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay or (iii) the process is considered unique or scarce.

The Company assesses fair value based on Level 2 and Level 3 inputs within the fair value framework, which includes estimated cash flow projections that utilize appropriate discount, capitalization rates, renewal probability and available market information, which includes market rental rate and market rent growth rates. Estimates of future cash flows are based on a number of factors, including historical operating results, known and anticipated trends and market and economic conditions.

The fair value of tangible assets of an acquired property considers the value of the property as if it were vacant. The fair value of acquired "above- and below-" market leases are based on the estimated cash flow projections utilizing discount rates that reflect the risks associated with the leases acquired. The amount recorded is based on the present value of the difference between (i) the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to each in-place lease and (ii) management's estimate of fair market lease rates for each in-place lease, measured over a period equal to the remaining term of the lease for above-market leases and the initial term plus the extended below-market term for any leases with below-market renewal options. Other intangible assets acquired include amounts for in-place lease values that are

based on the Company's evaluation of the specific characteristics of each tenant's lease. Factors considered include estimates of carrying costs during hypothetical expected lease-up periods, market conditions and costs to execute similar leases. In estimating carrying costs, the Company includes estimates of lost rents at market rates during the hypothetical expected lease-up periods, which are dependent on local market conditions. In estimating costs to execute similar leases, the Company considers leasing commissions, legal and other related costs.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

The Company had no acquisitions during the three months ended March 31, 2018.

#### **Dispositions**

The following table summarizes the properties sold during the three months ended March 31, 2018. These properties were non-strategic assets to the Company's portfolio and were classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2017:

Property	Month of Disposition	Square Feet	Price <sup>(1)</sup> (in millions)
2600 Campus Drive (building 6 of Peninsula Office Park)	January 2018	63,050	\$ 22.5
Embarcadero Place	January 2018	197,402	136.0
2180 Sand Hill	March 2018	45,613	82.5
Total dispositions		306,065	\$ 241.0

<sup>(1)</sup> Represents gross sales price before certain credits, prorations and closing costs.

These dispositions met the criteria in ASC 610 for recognizing gains of \$37.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018, which is included in the gains on sale of real estate line item in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

#### Held for Sale

In December 2017, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its 9300 Wilshire property for \$13.8 million (before certain credits, prorations and closing costs). As of December 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018, the Company determined that this property met the criteria to be classified as held for sale. 9300 Wilshire was subsequently sold on April 10, 2018, which resulted in a gain.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had 4 properties that met the criteria to be classified as held for sale.

The following table summarizes the components of assets and liabilities associated with real estate held for sale as of:

,	March 31, 2018	December 31, 2017
ASSETS		
Investment in real estate, net	\$8,775	\$204,895
Accounts receivable, net	28	85
Straight-line rent receivables, net	420	2,234
Deferred leasing costs and lease intangible assets, net	2,394	4,063
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net	87	58
Assets associated with real estate held for sale	\$11,704	\$211,335
LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	\$393	\$782
Lease intangible liabilities, net		95

Security deposits and prepaid rent	237	1,339
Liabilities associated with real estate held for sale	\$630	\$2,216

# Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

No impairment indicators have been noted and the Company recorded no impairment charges for the three months ended March 31, 2018.

# **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

# 4. Deferred Leasing Costs and Lease Intangibles, net

The following summarizes the Company's deferred leasing costs and lease intangibles as of:

	March 31, Dec	ember 31,
	2018 2017	7
Above-market leases	\$11,526 \$19	,222
Accumulated amortization	(8,507) (15,	731 )
Above-market leases, net	3,019 3,49	1
Deferred leasing costs and in-place lease intangibles	298,042 311,	,599
Accumulated amortization	(120,436) (132	2,426 )
Deferred leasing costs and in-place lease intangibles, net	177,606 179,	,173
Below-market ground leases	68,388 68,3	888
Accumulated amortization	(7,101 ) (6,4	98 )
Below-market ground leases, net	61,287 61,8	390
Deferred leasing costs and lease intangible assets, net <sup>(1)</sup>	\$241,912 \$24	4,554
Below-market leases	\$100,259 \$10	5,233
Accumulated amortization	(55,560 ) (56,	265 )
Below-market leases, net	44,699 48,9	068
Above-market ground leases	1,095 1,09	05
Accumulated amortization	(143) (133	3 )
Above-market ground leases, net	952 962	
Lease intangible liabilities, net <sup>(1)</sup>	\$45,651 \$49	,930

<sup>(1)</sup> Excludes balances related to properties that have been classified as held for sale.

The Company recognized the following amortization related to deferred leasing costs and lease intangibles:

	Three Months	
	Ended 1	March 31,
	2018	2017
Above-market leases <sup>(1)</sup>	\$(474)	\$(1,356)
Deferred leasing costs and in-place lease intangibles <sup>(2)</sup>	(11,69)	(19,793)
Below-market ground leases <sup>(3)</sup>	(635)	(648)
Below-market leases <sup>(1)</sup>	4,285	7,088
Above-market ground leases <sup>(3)</sup>	11	11

<sup>(1)</sup> Amortization is recorded in revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Amortization is recorded in depreciation and amortization expenses and office rental revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

<sup>(3)</sup> Amortization is recorded in office operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

#### 5. Accounts Receivable, net

The Company's accounting policy and methodology used to estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts is discussed in the Company's 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following table summarizes the Company's accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts as of:

 $\begin{array}{cccc} & \text{March 31, December 31,} \\ 2018 & 2017 \\ \text{Accounts receivable} & \$\,8,442 & \$\,6,835 \\ \text{Allowance for doubtful accounts} & (2,497 & ) & (2,472 & ) \\ \text{Accounts receivable, net}^{(1)} & \$\,5,945 & \$\,4,363 \\ \end{array}$ 

## 6. Straight-line Rent Receivables, net

The Company's accounting policy and methodology used to estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts is discussed in the Company's 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following table represents the Company's straight-line rent receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts as of:

#### 7. Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets, net

The following table summarizes the Company's prepaid expenses and other assets, net as of:

March 31, December 31, 2018 2017 Derivative assets \$ 21,922 \$ 12,586 Investment in unconsolidated entities 14,052 14,240 Goodwill 8,754 8,754 Other 25,007 25,558 Prepaid expenses and other assets,  $net^{(1)}$  \$ 69,735 \$ 61,138

No goodwill impairment indicators have been noted during the three months ended March 31, 2018.

<sup>(1)</sup> Excludes balances related to properties that have been classified as held for sale.

<sup>(1)</sup> Excludes balances related to properties that have been classified as held for sale.

<sup>(1)</sup> Excludes balances related to properties that have been classified as held for sale.

# **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.
Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

## 8. Notes Payable, net

The following table sets forth information with respect to our outstanding indebtedness:

Contracted 1				
	March 31, 2018	December 31, 2017	Interest Rate <sup>(1)</sup>	Contractual Maturity Date
UNSECURED NOTES PAYABLE				
Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	\$ 20,000	\$ 100,000	LIBOR + 1.05% to 1.50%	3/13/2022 (4)
Term Loan A <sup>(2)(5)</sup>	300,000	300,000	LIBOR + 1.20% to 1.70%	4/1/2020 (6)
Term Loan C <sup>(2)</sup>	75,000	75,000	LIBOR + 1.30% to 2.20%	11/17/2020
Term Loan B <sup>(2)(7)</sup>	350,000	350,000	LIBOR + 1.20% to 1.70%	4/1/2022
Term Loan D <sup>(2)(8)</sup>	125,000	125,000	LIBOR + 1.20% to 1.70%	11/17/2022
Series A Notes	110,000	110,000	4.34%	1/2/2023
Series E Notes	50,000	50,000	3.66%	9/15/2023
Series B Notes	259,000	259,000	4.69%	12/16/2025
Series D Notes	150,000	150,000	3.98%	7/6/2026
Registered Senior Notes <sup>(9)</sup>	400,000	400,000	3.95%	11/1/2027
Series C Notes	56,000	56,000	4.79%	12/16/2027
TOTAL UNSECURED NOTES PAYABLE	1,895,000	1,975,000		
SECURED NOTES PAYABLE				
Sunset Gower Studios/Sunset Bronson Studios <sup>(10)</sup>	5,001	5,001	LIBOR + 2.25%	3/4/2019 (4)
Met Park North <sup>(11)</sup>	64,500	64,500	LIBOR + 1.55%	8/1/2020
10950 Washington <sup>(12)</sup>	27,281	27,418	5.32%	3/11/2022
Element LA	168,000	168,000	4.59%	11/6/2025
Hill7 <sup>(13)</sup>	101,000	101,000	3.38%	11/6/2028
Rincon Center	_	98,392	5.13%	N/A
TOTAL SECURED NOTES PAYABLE	365,782	464,311		
TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE	2,260,782	2,439,311		
Unamortized deferred financing costs and loan discounts <sup>(14)</sup>	(20,094)	(17,931 )		
TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE, NET	\$ 2,240,688	\$ 2,421,380		

Interest rate with respect to indebtedness is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year for the actual days elapsed.

<sup>(1)</sup> Interest rates are as of March 31, 2018, which may be different than the interest rates as of December 31, 2017 for corresponding indebtedness.

The Company has an option to make an irrevocable election to change the interest rate depending on the Company's (2) credit rating or a specified base rate plus an applicable margin. As of March 31, 2018, no such election had been made.

- (3) The Company has a total capacity of \$600.0 million under its unsecured revolving credit facility.
- (4) The maturity date may be extended once for an additional one-year term.
- The outstanding balance of the term loan was effectively fixed at 2.56% to 3.06% per annum through the use of two interest rate swaps. See Note 9 for details.
- (6) The maturity date may be extended twice, each time for an additional one-year term.
- (7) The outstanding balance of the term loan was effectively fixed at 2.96% to 3.46% per annum through the use of two interest rate swaps. See Note 9 for details.
- The outstanding balance of the term loan was effectively fixed at 2.63% to 3.13% per annum through the use (8) of an interest rate swap. See Note 9 for details.
- On October 2, 2017, the Company completed an underwritten public offering of \$400.0 million of senior notes, which were issued at 99.815% of par.
- (10) The Company has the ability to draw up to \$257.0 million under its construction loan, subject to lender required submissions.
- This loan bears interest only. Interest on the full loan amount has been effectively fixed at 3.71% per annum through the use of an interest rate swap. See Note 9 for details.
- Monthly debt service includes annual debt amortization payments based on a 30-year amortization schedule with a balloon payment at maturity.
  - The Company owns 55% of the ownership interest in the consolidated joint venture that owns the Hill7 property.
- The full amount of the loan is shown. This loan bears interest only at 3.38% until November 6, 2026, at which time the interest rate will increase and monthly debt service will include principal payments with a balloon payment at maturity.
- (14) Excludes deferred financing costs related to establishing the Company's unsecured revolving credit facility.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

#### Current year activity

On February 1, 2018, the Company paid in full the debt secured by its Rincon Center property, which was due to mature in May 2018.

On March 13, 2018, the operating partnership entered into the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (as defined below) with various financial institutions. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement modifies the operating partnership's unsecured revolving credit facility and its term loans as discussed under the Term Loan and Credit Facility section below.

#### Indebtedness

The Company presents its financial statements on a consolidated basis. Notwithstanding such presentation, except to the extent expressly indicated, such as in the case of the project financing for Sunset Gower Studios and Sunset Bronson Studios, the Company's separate property-owning subsidiaries are not obligors of the debt of their respective affiliates and each property-owning subsidiary's separate liabilities do not constitute obligations of its respective affiliates.

Loan agreements include events of default that the Company believes are usual for loan and transactions of this type. As of the date of this filing, there have been no events of default associated with the Company's loans.

The following table summarizes the minimum future principal payments due (before the impact of extension options, if applicable) on the operating partnership's secured and unsecured notes payable as of March 31, 2018:

	Annual
Year	Principal
	Payments
Remaining 2018	\$400
2019	5,569
2020	440,095
2021	632
2022	520,086
Thereafter	1,294,000
Total	\$2,260,782

#### Term Loan and Credit Facility

On March 13, 2018, the operating partnership entered into a Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the "Amended and Restated Credit Agreement") with various financial institutions. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement amends and restates and replaces (i) the operating partnership's existing Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, entered into on March 31, 2015 (the "Prior Credit Agreement"), which governed its \$400.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility, \$300.0 million unsecured 5-year term loan facility and \$350.0 million unsecured 7-year term loan facility, and (ii) the operating partnership's Term Loan Credit Agreement, entered into on November 17, 2015 (together with the Prior Credit Agreement, the "Existing Credit Agreements"), which governed its \$75.0 million unsecured 5-year term loan facility and \$125.0 million unsecured 7-year term loan facility.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement provides for (i) the increase of the operating partnership's unsecured revolving credit facility to \$600.0 million and the extension of the term to March 13, 2022 and (ii) term loans in amount and tenor equal to the term loans outstanding under the Existing Credit Agreements (\$300.0 million term loan A maturing April 1, 2020, \$350.0 million term loan B maturing April 1, 2022, \$75.0 million term loan C maturing November 17, 2020 and \$125.0 million term loan D maturing November 17, 2022).

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

The Company uses the unsecured revolving credit facility to finance the acquisition of other properties, to provide funds for tenant improvements and capital expenditures and to provide for working capital and other corporate purposes.

The following table summarizes the balance and key terms of the unsecured revolving credit facility as of:

	March 31,	December 31,
	2018	2017
Outstanding borrowings	\$20,000	\$ 100,000
Remaining borrowing capacity	580,000	300,000
Total borrowing capacity	\$600,000	\$ 400,000
	LIBOR +	LIBOR +
Interest rate <sup>(1)(2)</sup>	1.05% to	1.15% to
	1.50%	1.85%
Escilita for annual mate(1)	0.15% or	0.20% or
Facility fee-annual rate <sup>(1)</sup>	0.30%	0.35%
Contractual maturity date <sup>(3)</sup>	3/13/2022	4/1/2019

The rate is based on the operating partnership's leverage ratio. The Company has the option to make an irrevocable (1)election to change the interest rate depending on the Company's credit rating. As of March 31, 2018, no such election had been made.

#### **Debt Covenants**

The operating partnership's ability to borrow under its unsecured loan arrangements remains subject to ongoing compliance with financial and other covenants as defined in the respective agreements. Certain financial covenant ratios are subject to change in the occurrence of material acquisitions as defined in the respective agreements. Other covenants include certain limitations on dividend payouts and distributions, limits on certain types of investments outside of the operating partnership's primary business and other customary affirmative and negative covenants.

The following table summarizes existing covenants and their covenant levels related to our unsecured revolving credit facility, term loans, and series A, B, D, and E notes, when considering the most restrictive terms:

Covenant Ratio	Covenant Level
Total Liabilities to Total Asset Value	≤ 60%
Unsecured Indebtedness to Unencumbered Asset Value	≤ 60%
Adjusted EBITDA to Fixed Charges	≥ 1.5x
Secured Indebtedness to Total Asset Value	≤ 45%
Unencumbered NOI to Unsecured Interest Expense	≥ 2.0x

The following table summarizes existing covenants and their covenant levels related to our registered senior notes:

Covenant Ratio Covenant Level

Debt to Total Assets  $\leq 60\%$ 

<sup>(2)</sup> The Company has the option to make an irrevocable election to change the interest rate depending on the Company's specified base rate plus an applicable margin. As of March 31, 2018, no such election had been made.

<sup>(3)</sup> The maturity date may be extended once for an additional one-year term.

Total Unencumbered Assets to Unsecured Debt	≥ 150%
Consolidated Income Available for Debt Service to Annual Debt Service Charge	≥ 1.5x
Secured Debt to Total Assets	≤ 45%

The operating partnership was in compliance with its financial covenants as of March 31, 2018.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

#### Repayment Guarantees

#### Registered Senior Notes

The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the operating partnership's \$400.0 million registered senior notes due November 1, 2027.

#### Sunset Gower Studios and Sunset Bronson Studios Loan

In connection with the loan secured by the Sunset Gower Studios and Sunset Bronson Studios properties, the Company has guaranteed in favor of and promised to pay to the lender 19.5% of the principal payable under the loan in the event the borrower, a wholly-owned entity of the operating partnership, does not do so. As of March 31, 2018, the outstanding balance was \$5.0 million, which results in a maximum guarantee amount for the principal under this loan of \$1.0 million. The Company has the ability to draw up to \$257.0 million under its construction loan, subject to lender required submissions. Furthermore, the Company agreed to guarantee the completion of the construction improvements, including tenant improvements, as defined in the agreement, in the event of any default of the borrower. If the borrower fails to complete the remaining required work, the guarantor agrees to perform timely all of the completion obligations, as defined in the agreement. As of the date of this filing, there has been no event of default associated with this loan.

#### Other Loans

Although the rest of the operating partnership's loans are secured and non-recourse, the operating partnership provides limited customary secured debt guarantees for items such as voluntary bankruptcy, fraud, misapplication of payments and environmental liabilities.

#### Interest Expense

The following table represents a reconciliation from the gross interest expense to the amount on the interest expense line item in the Consolidated Statements of Operations:

	Three Months Ended March 31,	
	2018	2017
Gross interest expense <sup>(1)</sup>	\$22,431	\$23,190
Capitalized interest	(3,586)	(2,446)
Amortization of deferred financing costs and loan discount, net	1,658	1,186
Interest expense	\$20,503	\$21,930

<sup>(1)</sup> Includes interest on the Company's notes payable and hedging activities.

#### 9. Derivatives

The Company enters into derivatives in order to hedge interest rate risk. The Company had six interest rate swaps with aggregate notional amounts of \$839.5 million as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. These derivatives were designated as effective cash flow hedges for accounting purposes. There is no impact on the Company's Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows.

The Company's derivatives are classified as Level 2 and their fair values are derived from estimated values obtained from observable market data for similar instruments.

The following table summarizes the Company's derivative instruments as of March 31, 2018:

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

					Strike Rate Range <sup>(1)</sup>		
Underlying Debt Instrument	Number of Hedges	Notional	Effective Date	Maturity Date	Low	High	Fair
		Amount					Value
Met Park North	1	\$64,500	Aug 2013	August 2020	2.16%	2.16%	\$ 322
Term Loan A <sup>(2)</sup>	2	300,000	July 2016	April 2020	2.56%	3.06%	5,313
Term Loan B <sup>(3)</sup>	2	350,000	July 2016	April 2022	2.96%	3.46%	10,143
Term Loan D <sup>(4)</sup>	1	125,000	June 2016	November 2022	2.63%	3.13%	6,144

<sup>(1)</sup> The rate is based on the operating partnership's leverage ratio.

On January 1, 2018, the Company early adopted ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to Accounting for Hedging Activities ("ASU 2017-12"). As a result of the adoption, the Company is no longer recognizing unrealized gains or losses related to ineffective portions of its derivative instruments. The Company recognized a \$231 thousand cumulative-effect adjustment to other comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (accumulated deficit). For the three months ended March 31, 2017, the Company recognized an unrealized gain of \$6 thousand, reflected in the unrealized gain on ineffective portion of derivative instruments line item on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The fair market value of derivative instruments is presented on a gross basis in prepaid and other expenses, net and derivative liabilities line items on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The derivative assets as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were \$21.9 million and \$12.6 million, respectively. The derivative liabilities as of March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 were \$0.0 million and \$0.3 million, respectively.

The Company reclassifies into earnings in the same period during which the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings. As of March 31, 2018, the Company expects \$4.6 million of unrealized gain included in accumulated other comprehensive income will be reclassified to interest expense in the next 12 months.

#### 10. Income Taxes

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. has elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("the Code"), commencing with its taxable year ended December 31, 2010. Provided it continues to qualify for taxation as a REIT, Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. is generally not subject to corporate level income tax on the earnings distributed currently to its stockholders. The Company has elected, together with one of its subsidiaries, to treat such subsidiary as a taxable REIT subsidiary ("TRS") for federal income tax purposes.

The Company's property-owning subsidiaries are limited liability companies and treated as pass-through entities or disregarded entities (or, in the case of the entities that own the 1455 Market and Hill7 properties, REITs) for federal income tax purposes. Accordingly, no provision has been made for federal income taxes in the accompanying

On March 13, 2018, the underlying debt instrument that was hedged was amended. Prior to the amendment, the interest was effectively fixed at 2.75% to 3.65%.

<sup>(3)</sup> On March 13, 2018, the underlying debt instrument that was hedged was amended. Prior to the amendment, the interest was effectively fixed at 3.36% to 4.31%.

<sup>(4)</sup> On March 13, 2018, the underlying debt instrument that was hedged was amended. Prior to the amendment, the interest was effectively fixed at 3.03% to 3.98%.

consolidated financial statements for the activities of these entities.

The Company periodically evaluates its tax positions to determine whether it is more likely than not that such positions would be sustained upon examination by a tax authority for all open tax years, as defined by the statute of limitations, based on their technical merits. As of March 31, 2018, the Company has not established a liability for uncertain tax positions.

The Company and its TRS file income tax returns with the U.S. federal government and various state and local jurisdictions. The Company and its TRS are no longer subject to tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2013. The Company has assessed its tax positions for all open years, which include 2013 to 2017, and concluded that there are no material uncertainties to be recognized.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

#### 11. Future Minimum Lease Payments

Contingent rental expense is recorded in the period in which the contingent event becomes probable. The following table summarizes rent expense for ground leases as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2018 2017

Contingent rental expense \$3,095 \$2,184 Minimum rental expense 3,337 3,196

The following table provides information regarding the Company's future minimum lease payments for its ground leases (before the impact of extension options, if applicable) as of March 31, 2018:

	Ground
Year	Leases
	(1)(2)
Remaining 2018	\$10,601
2019	14,161
2020	14,161
2021	14,161
2022	14,161
Thereafter	382,070
Total	\$449,315

In situations where ground lease obligation adjustments are based on third-party appraisals of fair market land

#### 12. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The GAAP fair value framework uses a three-tiered approach. Fair value measurements are classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations in which significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets; and

Level 3: prices or valuation techniques where little or no market data is available that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable.

<sup>(1)</sup> value, CPI adjustments and/or percentage of gross income that exceeds the minimum annual rent, the future minimum lease amounts above include the lease rental obligations in effect as of March 31, 2018.

<sup>(2)</sup> Balance includes future minimum ground lease obligation for 9300 Wilshire, which was sold on April 10, 2018.

In September 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to receive shares of a nonpublic company in lieu of rental and tenant recovery revenues that were valued at \$1.8 million. The shares were accounted for under the cost method of accounting as there was no readily determinable fair value. The investment in the shares has been accounted for under ASC 825-10, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, since the Company adopted ASU 2016-01 on January 1, 2018, at which point the Company elected the measurement alternative. This standard requires the Company to mark the investment in shares to fair value, which are based on recent transactions. There have been no other transactions since the Company obtained its shares in 2016 and therefore there have been no adjustments to the carrying value.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

The Company's financial assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value on a recurring basis include the following as of:

(1) Included in the prepaid expenses and other assets line item on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

#### Other Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are reasonable estimates of fair value, using Level 1 inputs, because of the short-term nature of these instruments. Fair values for notes payable are estimates based on rates currently prevailing for similar instruments of similar maturities using Level 2 inputs.

The table below represents the carrying value and fair value of the Company's notes payable as of:

#### 13. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has various stock compensation arrangements, which are more fully described in the 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Under the 2010 Incentive Plan, as amended ("the 2010 Plan"), the Company's board of directors ("the Board") has the ability to grant, among other things, restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance-based awards.

The Board awards restricted shares to non-employee Board members on an annual basis as part of such Board members' annual compensation and to newly elected non-employee Board members in accordance with the Non-Employee Director Compensation Program. The time-based awards are generally issued in the second quarter, in conjunction with the director's election to the Board, and the individual share awards vest in equal annual installments over the applicable service vesting period, which is three years.

The Board awards time-based restricted shares to employees on an annual basis as part of the employees' annual compensation. The time-based awards are generally issued in the fourth quarter and the individual share awards vest in equal annual installments over the applicable service vesting period, which is generally three years. Additionally, certain restricted share awards are subject to a mandatory holding period upon vesting if the grantee is a named

<sup>(1)</sup> Amounts represent notes payable excluding net deferred financing costs.

The \$400.0 million registered senior notes were issued at a discount. The discount, net of amortization, was \$704

<sup>(2)</sup> thousand and \$722 thousand at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, and is included within unsecured notes payable.

executive officer.

In December 2015, the compensation committee of the Board ("Compensation Committee") awarded a one-time special retention award to certain executives. The grants consist of time-based awards and performance-based awards. The time-based awards vest in equal 25% installments over a four-year period, subject to the participant's continued employment. The performance-based awards vest over a four-year period, subject to the achievement of applicable performance goals and the participant's continued employment.

The Compensation Committee annually adopts a Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. Outperformance Program ("OPP Plan") under the 2010 Plan. An award under the OPP Plan is ultimately earned to the extent the Company outperforms a predetermined total shareholder return ("TSR") goal and/or achieves goals with respect to the outperformance of its peers in a particular REIT index. The ultimate aggregate award cannot exceed the predetermined maximum bonus pool. OPP Plan awards granted are settled in common stock and in the case of certain executives, in performance units in our operating partnership.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

With respect to OPP Plan awards granted prior to 2017, to the extent an award is earned following the completion of a three-year performance period, 50% of the earned award will vest in full at the end of the three-year performance period and 25% of the earned award will vest in equal annual installments over the two years thereafter, subject to the participant's continued employment. Commencing with the 2017 OPP Plan, the two-year post-performance vesting period was replaced with a two-year mandatory holding period upon vesting. In February 2018, the Compensation Committee adopted the 2018 OPP Plan. The 2018 OPP Plan is substantially similar to the 2017 OPP Plans except for (i) the performance period beginning on January 1, 2018 and ending on December 31, 2020, (ii) the maximum bonus pool is \$25.0 million, (iii) the relative comparison index is the SNL US Office REIT index, (iv) the absolute TSR hurdle will be 21% (or 7% per annum) and (v) adjusted the sliding scale low return factor so that relative TSR pool can only be reduced by 75% under this feature.

The per unit fair value of the 2018 OPP award granted was estimated on the date of grant using the following assumptions in the Monte Carlo valuation:

	Assumption
Expected price volatility for the Company	20.00%
Expected price volatility for the particular REIT index	18.00%
Risk-free rate	2.37%
Dividend yield	2.90%

The following table presents the classification and amount recognized for stock-based compensation related to the Company's awards:

Three Months Ended March 31.

31,

2018 2017

Expensed stock compensation<sup>(1)</sup> \$4,338 \$3,902 Capitalized stock compensation<sup>(2)</sup> 232 199 Total stock compensation<sup>(3)</sup> \$4,570 \$4,101

#### 14. Earnings Per Share

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. calculates basic earnings per share by dividing the net income available to common stockholders for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. calculates diluted earnings per share by dividing the diluted net income available to common stockholders for the period by the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive instruments outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method or the if-converted method, whichever is more dilutive. Unvested time-based RSUs and unvested OPP awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends are participating securities

<sup>(1)</sup> Amounts are recorded in general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Amounts are recorded in deferred leasing costs and lease intangible assets, net and investment in real estate, at cost in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

<sup>(3)</sup> Amounts are recorded in additional paid-in capital and non-controlling interest—units in the operating partnership in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

and are included in the computation of earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

(Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator in computing Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.'s basic and diluted earnings per share for net income available to common stockholders:

March 31, 2018 2017

Numerator:

Basic net income available to common stockholders \$48,577 \$ 20,515

Effect of dilutive instruments — 149

Diluted net income available to common stockholders \$48,577 \$ 20,664

Denominator:

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding Effect of dilutive instruments<sup>(1)</sup>

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 1,088,7671,999,752

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 156,714,8229,950,346

Basic earnings per common share \$0.31 \$ 0.14

Diluted earnings per common share \$0.31 \$ 0.14

The Company includes unvested awards and convertible common units as contingently issuable shares in the computation of diluted earnings per share once the market criteria are met, assuming that the end of the reporting period is the end of the contingency period. Any anti-dilutive securities are excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation.

Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.

Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. calculates basic earnings per share by dividing the net income available to common unitholders for the period by the weighted average number of common units outstanding during the period. Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. calculates diluted earnings per share by dividing the diluted net income available to common unitholders for the period by the weighted average number of common units and dilutive instruments outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method or the if-converted method, whichever is more dilutive. Unvested time-based RSUs and unvested OPP awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends are participating securities and are included in the computation of earnings per unit pursuant to the two-class method.

The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator in computing Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.'s basic and diluted earnings per unit for net income available to common unitholders:

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2018 2017
Numerator:	
Basic and diluted net income available to Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. common unitholders	\$48,754 \$ 20,717
Denominator:	
Basic weighted average common units outstanding	156,195,1009,407,796
Effect of dilutive instruments <sup>(1)</sup>	1,088,767927,000
Diluted weighted average common units outstanding	157,283,81650,334,796
Basic earnings per common unit	\$0.31 \$ 0.14

Diluted earnings per common unit

\$ 0.14

\$0.31

The operating partnership includes unvested awards as contingently issuable units in the computation of diluted (1)earnings per unit once the market criteria are met, assuming that the end of the reporting period is the end of the contingency period. Any anti-dilutive securities are excluded from the diluted earnings per unit calculation.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

## 15. Equity

The table below presents the effect of the Company's derivative instruments on accumulated other comprehensive income ("OCI"):

	Properties, Inc. Stockholders' Equity	Non- Inter	-controlling rests	Total Equity	
Balance at January 1, 2018	\$ 13,227	\$	49	\$13,276	
Unrealized gain recognized in OCI due to change in fair value	9,507	34		9,541	
Income reclassified from OCI into income (as interest expense)	(28)	_		(28)	
Net change in OCI	9,479	34		9,513	
Cumulative adjustment related to adoption of ASU 2017-12	230	1		231	
Balance at March 31, 2018	\$ 22,936	\$	84	\$23,020	

Non-controlling Interests

Common units in the operating partnership

Common units of the operating partnership and shares of common stock of the Company have essentially the same economic characteristics, as they share equally in the total net income or loss distributions of the operating partnership. Investors who own common units have the right to cause the operating partnership to repurchase any or all of their common units for cash equal to the then-current market value of one share of common stock or, at the Company's election, issue shares of the Company's common stock in exchange for common units on a one-for-one basis.

The following table summarizes the ownership of common units, excluding unvested restricted units as of:

	March 31,		December 3	81,
	2018		2017	
Company-owned common units in the operating partnership	155,626,055		155,602,508	
Company's ownership interest percentage	99.6	%	99.6	%
Non-controlling common units in the operating partnership <sup>(1)</sup>	569,045		569,045	
Non-controlling ownership interest percentage <sup>(1)</sup>	0.4	%	0.4	%

<sup>(1)</sup> Represents common units held by certain of the Company's executive officers and directors, certain of their affiliates and other outside investors.

Performance units are partnership interests in the operating partnership. Each performance unit awarded will be deemed equivalent to an award of one share of common stock under the 2010 Plan, reducing the availability for other equity awards on a one-for-one basis. Under the terms of the performance units, the operating partnership will revalue its assets for tax purposes upon the occurrence of certain specified events and any increase in valuation from the time of grant until such event will be allocated first to the holders of performance units to equalize the capital accounts of such holders with the capital accounts of common unitholders. Subject to any agreed upon exceptions, once vested and having achieved parity with common unitholders, performance units are convertible into common units in the operating partnership on a one-for-one basis.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

6.25% Series A cumulative redeemable preferred units of the operating partnership

There are 407,066 Series A preferred units of partnership interest in the operating partnership, or Series A preferred units, which are not owned by the Company. These Series A preferred units are entitled to preferential distributions at a rate of 6.25% per annum on the liquidation preference of \$25.00 per unit and became convertible at the option of the holder into common units or redeemable into cash or, at the Company's election, exchangeable for registered shares of common stock after June 29, 2013. For a description of the conversion and redemption rights of the Series A preferred units, please see "Description of the Partnership Agreement of Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.—Material Terms of Our Series A Preferred Units" in the Company's June 23, 2010 Prospectus.

## Common Stock Activity

The Company has not completed any common stock offerings in 2018.

The Company's at-the-market, or ATM, program permits sales of up to \$125.0 million of common stock. The Company did not utilize the ATM program during the three months ended March 31, 2018. A cumulative total of \$20.1 million has been sold as of March 31, 2018.

#### Share repurchase program

On January 20, 2016, the Board authorized a share repurchase program to buy up to \$100.0 million of the outstanding common stock of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc., which the Board has increased up to a total of \$250.0 million on March 8, 2018. No share repurchases have been made as of March 31, 2018.

#### Dividends

During the first quarter of 2018, the Company declared dividends on its common stock and non-controlling interest in common units in the operating partnership of \$0.25 per share and unit. The Company also declared dividends on its Series A preferred units of \$0.3906 per unit. The first quarter dividends were paid on March 29, 2018 to stockholders and unitholders of record on March 19, 2018.

#### Taxability of Dividends

Earnings and profits, which determine the taxability of distributions to stockholders, may differ from income reported for financial reporting purposes due to the differences for federal income tax purposes in the treatment of loss on extinguishment of debt, revenue recognition, compensation expense and the basis of depreciable assets and estimated useful lives used to compute depreciation.

#### 16. Related Party Transactions

# **Employment Agreements**

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain executive officers, effective January 1, 2016, that provide for various severance and change in control benefits and other terms and conditions of employment.

Disposal of Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II to certain affiliates of Blackstone

On November 16, 2017, the consolidated joint venture that owned Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II sold the properties to certain affiliates of Blackstone for \$350.0 million, before credits, prorations and closing costs, including the assumption of \$216.0 million of secured notes payable. Michael Nash, a director on the Board, is a senior managing director of an affiliate of Blackstone.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

Disposal of 222 Kearny to certain affiliates of Farallon Funds

On February 14, 2017, the Company sold its 222 Kearny property to a joint venture, a partner of which is an affiliate of the Farallon Funds. Richard B. Fried, a director on the Board, is a managing member of the Farallon Funds.

JMG Capital Lease at 11601 Wilshire

JMG Capital Management LLC leases approximately 6,638 square feet at the Company's 11601 Wilshire property pursuant to an eight-year lease at an aggregate rate of approximately \$279 thousand annualized rent per year. Jonathan M. Glaser, a director on the Board, is the founder and managing member of JMG Capital Management LLC. JMG Capital Management LLC was a tenant of the property at the time it was purchased by the Company in 2016.

During 2017, JMG Capital Management LLC assigned the lease to a third party and as a result is no longer a lessee at our 11601 Wilshire property as of December 31, 2017.

Agreement Related to EOP Acquisition

On April 1, 2015, the Company completed the EOP Acquisition from certain affiliates of Blackstone, which consisted of 26 high-quality office assets totaling approximately 8.2 million square feet and two development parcels located throughout the Northern California region. The total consideration paid for the EOP Acquisition before certain credits, prorations and closing costs, included a cash payment of \$1.75 billion and an aggregate of 63,474,791 shares of common stock of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and common units in the operating partnership. In connection with the EOP Acquisition, the Company, the operating partnership and Blackstone entered into a stockholders agreement, which conferred Blackstone certain rights, including the right to nominate up to three of the Company's directors. Additionally, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement with Blackstone providing for customary registration rights with respect to the equity consideration paid in the EOP Acquisition. Following a common stock offering and common unit repurchase on January 10, 2017, the stockholders agreement and the registration rights agreement automatically terminated on that date.

Common Stock Offerings and Common Unit Redemptions

On January 10, 2017, the Company, Blackstone and the Farallon Funds completed a public offering of 18,673,808 shares of common stock, consisting of 8,881,575 shares offered by the Company and 9,792,233 shares offered by the selling stockholders. The offering generated net proceeds for the Company and the selling stockholders of approximately \$310.9 million and \$342.7 million, respectively, before expenses. The Company used the net proceeds that it received from the offering to redeem 8,881,575 common units held by Blackstone and the Farallon Funds.

The Company did not receive any proceeds from the sale of the common stock by the selling stockholders in the offerings described above but it paid approximately half of the expenses of the offerings with respect to the shares of common stock sold by the Farallon Funds and all of the expenses with respect to the shares of common stock sold by Blackstone, in each case, other than underwriting discounts, which were borne by the selling stockholders.

#### 17. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal

From time to time, the Company is party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings arising out of, or incident to, the ordinary course of business. Management believes, based in part upon consultation with legal counsel, that the ultimate resolution of all such claims will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations, financial position or cash flows. As of March 31, 2018, the risk of material loss from such legal actions impacting the Company's financial condition or results from operations has been assessed as remote.

## Letters of Credit

As of March 31, 2018, the Company has outstanding letters of credit totaling approximately \$2.5 million under the unsecured revolving credit facility. The letters of credit are primarily related to utility company security deposit requirements.

#### **Table of Contents**

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued) (Unaudited, tabular amounts in thousands, except square footage and share/unit data)

#### 18. Cash Flow Reconciliation

Restricted cash primarily consists of amounts held by lenders to fund reserves such as capital improvements, taxes, insurance, debt service and operating expenditures. Pursuant to the adoption of ASU 2016-18, the Company included restricted cash with cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, which resulted in a decrease of \$7.2 million in the net cash provided by operating activities line item in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash at the beginning and end of the periods presented:

Three Months
Ended March 31,
2018 2017

Beginning of period:

Cash and cash equivalents \$78,922 \$83,015 Restricted cash 22,358 25,177 Total \$101,280 \$108,192

End of period:

Cash and cash equivalents \$64,080 \$115,690 Restricted cash 10,900 18,000 Total \$74,980 \$133,690

# 19. Subsequent Events

On April 10, 2018, the Company sold its 9300 Wilshire property for \$13.8 million (before credits, prorations and closings costs), which resulted in a gain on sale.

#### **Table of Contents**

# ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain written and oral statements made or incorporated by reference from time to time by us or our representatives in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, other filings or reports filed with the SEC, press releases, conferences, or otherwise, are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (set forth in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, as amended, and Section 21E of the Exchange Act). In particular, statements relating to our liquidity and capital resources, portfolio performance and results of operations contain forward-looking statements. Furthermore, all of the statements regarding future financial performance (including anticipated funds from operations, or FFO, market conditions and demographics) are forward-looking statements. We are including this cautionary statement to make applicable and take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for any such forward-looking statements. We caution investors that any forward-looking statements presented in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or that management may make orally or in writing from time to time, are based on management's beliefs and assumptions made by, and information currently available to, management. When used, the words "anticipate," "believe," "expect," "intend," "may," "might," "plan," "estimate," "project," "should," "will," "result" and expressions that do not relate solely to historical matters are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions and may be affected by known and unknown risks, trends, uncertainties and factors that are beyond our control. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. We expressly disclaim any responsibility to update forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Accordingly, investors should use caution in relying on past forward-looking statements, which were based on results and trends at the time they were made, to anticipate future results or trends. Additional information concerning these and other risks and uncertainties is contained in our other periodic filings with the SEC.

Some of the risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results, performance, liquidity or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by forward-looking statements include, among others, the following:

adverse economic or real estate developments in our target markets;

general economic conditions;

defaults on, early terminations of or non-renewal of leases by tenants;

fluctuations in interest rates and increased operating costs;

our failure to obtain necessary outside financing or maintain an investment grade rating;

our failure to generate sufficient cash flows to service our outstanding indebtedness and maintain dividend payments;

lack or insufficient amounts of insurance;

decreased rental rates or increased vacancy rates;

difficulties in identifying properties to acquire and completing acquisitions;

our failure to successfully operate acquired properties and operations;

our failure to maintain our status as a REIT;

environmental uncertainties and risks related to adverse weather conditions and natural disasters;

financial market fluctuations;

#### **Table of Contents**

risks related to acquisitions generally, including the diversion of management's attention from ongoing business operations and the impact on customers, tenants, lenders, operating results and business;

the inability to successfully integrate acquired properties, realize the anticipated benefits of acquisitions or capitalize on value creation opportunities;

the impact of changes in the tax laws as a result of recent federal tax reform legislation and uncertainty as to how some of those changes may be applied;

changes in real estate and zoning laws and increases in real property tax rates; and

other factors affecting the real estate industry generally.

Additionally, we operate in a highly competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all such risk factors, nor can it assess the impact of all such risk factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. Given these risks and uncertainties, investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual results.

# **Historical Results of Operations**

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. represents an update to the more detailed and comprehensive disclosures included in the 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Accordingly, you should read the following discussion in conjunction with the information included in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as the unaudited financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

In addition, some of the statements and assumptions in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act or Section 21E of the Exchange Act, including, in particular, statements about our plans, strategies and prospects as well as estimates of industry growth for the quarter and beyond. See "Forward-Looking Statements."

# Table of Contents

## Overview

The following table identifies the properties in our portfolio as of March 31, 2018:

The following more monarcs are properties in our portions a	.s of Waren 51, 2010.	Acquisition/Estima	te <b>C</b> onsideration	
Properties	Acquisition Date	Rentable Square	Paid (in	
	1	Feet	thousands)	
Acquired properties:			·	
875 Howard	2/15/2007	286,270	\$ <i>-</i>	
Sunset Gower Studios	8/17/2007	545,673	_	
6040 Sunset <sup>(1)</sup>	8/17/2007	114,958		
Sunset Bronson Studios	1/30/2008	308,026		
Del Amo	8/13/2010	113,000	27,327	
9300 Wilshire <sup>(2)</sup>	8/24/2010	61,224	14,684	
1455 Market <sup>(3)</sup>	12/16/2010	1,025,833	92,365	
Rincon Center	12/16/2010	580,850	184,571	
10950 Washington	12/22/2010	159,024	46,409	
604 Arizona	7/26/2011	44,260	21,373	
275 Brannan	8/19/2011	54,673	12,370	
625 Second	9/1/2011	138,080	57,119	
6922 Hollywood	11/22/2011	205,523	92,802	
6050 Sunset & 1445 N. Beachwood	12/16/2011	20,032	6,502	
	4/5/2012	9,919		
10900 Washington		,	2,605	
901 Market	6/1/2012	206,199	90,871	
Element LA (includes 1861 Bundy)	9/5/2012 &	284,037	99,936	
1455 C 1	9/23/2013	5.001	2.205	
1455 Gordon	9/21/2012	5,921	2,385	
3401 Exposition	5/22/2013	63,376	25,722	
Seattle Portfolio (83 King, 505 First, Met Park North and	7/31/2013	844,980	368,389	
Northview Center)			•	
Merrill Place	2/12/2014	193,153	57,034	
EOP Northern California Portfolio (see table on next page for	4/1/2015	6,814,621	3,282,971	
property list)				
Fourth & Traction <sup>(4)</sup>	5/22/2015	120,937	49,250	
MaxWell <sup>(5)</sup>	8/17/2015	83,285	40,000	
	7/1/2016 &			
11601 Wilshire <sup>(6)</sup>	6/15/2017	500,475	361,000	
Hill7 <sup>(7)</sup>	10/7/2016	285,680	179,800	
Page Mill Hill	12/12/2016	182,676	150,000	
r age Willi Tilli	5/1/2017 &	102,070	130,000	
Sunset Las Palmas Studios (includes 6666 Santa Monica)	6/29/2017	373,150	203,200	
Development properties <sup>(8)</sup> :				
$ICON^{(9)}$	N/A	325,757	N/A	
450 Alaskan <sup>(10)</sup>	N/A	170,974	N/A	
CUE <sup>(11)</sup>	N/A	91,953	N/A	
95 Jackson <sup>(12)</sup>	N/A	31,659	N/A	
EPIC <sup>(13)</sup>	N/A	300,000	N/A	
Harlow <sup>(14)</sup>	N/A	106,125	N/A	
Total		14,652,303	\$ 5,468,685	

- (1) This development was completed in June 2008.
- This property was classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018 and subsequently sold on April 10, 2018.
- (3) We have a 55% ownership interest in the consolidated joint venture that owns the 1455 Market property.
- (4) This development was completed in the second quarter of 2017.
- We estimate this development will be completed in the fourth quarter of 2018 and stabilized in the second quarter of 2019. As a result of this development, the estimated rentable square footage increased to 99,090.
- (6) We acquired the building and partial interest in the land on July 1, 2016 and acquired the remaining interest in the land on June 15, 2017.

#### **Table of Contents**

- (7) We have a 55% ownership interest in the consolidated joint venture that owns the Hill7 property.
- (8) Includes properties that were related to acquisitions that were subsequently developed by us.
- (9) The land related to this development was included in our acquisition of Sunset Bronson Studios. We completed this development in the fourth quarter of 2016.
- The land related to this development was included in our acquisition of Merrill Place. We completed this development in the third quarter of 2017.
- The land related to this development was included in our acquisition of Sunset Bronson Studios. We completed this development in the third quarter of 2017.
- The land related to this development was included in our acquisition of Merrill Place. We estimate this development will be completed in the second quarter of 2018 and stabilized in the fourth quarter of 2018.
- The land related to this development was included in our acquisition of Sunset Bronson Studios. We estimate this development will be completed in the first quarter of 2020 and stabilized in the third quarter of 2021.
- The land related to this development was included in our acquisition of Sunset Las Palmas Studios. We estimate this development will be completed in the first quarter of 2020 and stabilized in the fourth quarter of 2020.

The following table identifies the properties we own as of March 31, 2018 that were acquired as part of the EOP Acquisition:

	Acquisition
Properties	Square
	Feet
1740 Technology	206,876
333 Twin Dolphin	182,789
3176 Porter	42,899
3400 Hillview	207,857
555 Twin Dolphin	198,936
Campus Center	471,580
Clocktower Square	100,344
Concourse	944,386
Foothill Research Center	195,376
Gateway	609,093
Metro Center	730,215
Metro Plaza	456,921
Page Mill Center	176,245
Palo Alto Square	328,251
Peninsula Office Park	447,739
Shorebreeze	230,932
Skyport Plaza	418,086
Skyway Landing	247,173
Techmart	284,440
Towers at Shore Center	334,483
Total	6,814,621

## **Table of Contents**

The following table identifies the properties that were disposed through March 31, 2018:

City Plaza 7/12/2013 333,922 \$56.0	
Tierrasanta 7/16/2014 112,300 19.5	
First Financial 3/6/2015 223,679 89.0	
Bay Park Plaza 9/29/2015 260,183 90.0	
Bayhill Office Center 1/14/2016 554,328 215.0	
Patrick Henry Drive 4/7/2016 70,520 19.0	
One Bay Plaza 6/1/2016 195,739 53.4	
12655 Jefferson 11/4/2016 100,756 80.0	
222 Kearny 2/14/2017 148,797 51.8	
3402 Pico 3/21/2017 50,687 35.0	
Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II <sup>(2)</sup> 11/16/2017 623,777 350.0	
Embarcadero Place 1/25/2018 197,402 136.0	
2600 Campus Drive (building 6 of Peninsula Office Park) 1/31/2018 63,050 22.5	
2180 Sand Hill 3/1/2018 45,613 82.5	
Total $^{(3)(4)(5)}$ 2,980,753 \$1,299	.7

<sup>(1)</sup> Represents gross sales price before certain credits, prorations and closing costs.

All amounts and percentages used in this discussion of our results of operations are calculated using the numbers presented in the financial statements contained in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report rather than the rounded numbers appearing in this discussion. The dollar amounts included in the tables in this discussion of our results of operations are presented in thousands.

<sup>(2)</sup> We sold our 65% ownership interest in the consolidate joint venture.

<sup>(3)</sup> Excludes the disposition of 45% interest in 1455 Market office property on January 7, 2015.

<sup>(4)</sup> Excludes our sale of an option to acquire land at 9300 Culver on December 6, 2016.

<sup>(5)</sup> Excludes our sale of 9300 Wilshire that was sold on April 10, 2018.

#### **Table of Contents**

Comparison of the three months ended March 31, 2018 to the three months ended March 31, 2017

## Net Operating Income

We evaluate performance based upon property net operating income ("NOI") from continuing operations. NOI is not a measure of operating results or cash flows from operating activities or cash flows as measured by GAAP and should not be considered an alternative to income from continuing operations, as an indication of our performance, or as an alternative to cash flows as a measure of liquidity, or our ability to make distributions. All companies may not calculate NOI in the same manner. We consider NOI to be a useful performance measure to investors and management because when compared across periods, NOI reflects the revenues and expenses directly associated with owning and operating our properties and the impact to operations from trends in occupancy rates, rental rates and operating costs, providing a perspective not immediately apparent from income from continuing operations. We calculate NOI as net income (loss) excluding corporate general and administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization, impairments, gains/losses on sales of real estate, interest expense, transaction-related expenses and other non-operating items. We define NOI as operating revenues (including rental revenues, other property-related revenue, tenant recoveries and other operating revenues), less property-level operating expenses (which includes external management fees, if any, and property-level general and administrative expenses). NOI on a cash basis is NOI on a GAAP basis, adjusted to exclude the effect of straight-line rent and other non-cash adjustments required by GAAP. We believe that NOI on a cash basis is helpful to investors as an additional measure of operating performance because it eliminates straight-line rent and other non-cash adjustments to revenue and expenses.

Management further analyzes NOI by evaluating the performance from the following property groups:

Same-Store properties, which includes all of the properties owned and included in our stabilized portfolio as of January 1, 2017 and still owned and included in the stabilized portfolio as of March 31, 2018;

Non-Same-Store properties, which includes held for sale properties, development projects, redevelopment properties and lease-up properties as of March 31, 2018 and other properties not owned or not in operation from January 1, 2017 through March 31, 2018.

The following table reconciles net income to NOI:

	Three Months Ended			
	March 31,			
	2018	2017	Dollar Change	Percent Change
Net income	\$52,563	\$24,153	\$28,410	117.6 %
Adjustments:				
Interest expense	20,503	21,930	(1,427)	(6.5)
Interest income	(9)	(30)	21	(70.0)
Unrealized gain on ineffective portion of derivatives	_	(6)	6	(100.0)
Transaction-related expenses	118		118	100.0
Other income	(404)	(678)	274	(40.4)
Gains on sale of real estate	(37,674)	(16,866)	(20,808)	123.4
Income from operations	35,097	28,503	6,594	23.1
Adjustments:				
General and administrative	15,564	13,810	1,754	12.7
Depreciation and amortization	60,553	70,767	(10,214)	(14.4)
NOI	\$111,214	\$113,080	\$(1,866)	(1.7)%

Same-Store NOI	\$73,020	\$70,619	\$2,401 3.4 %
Non-Same-Store NOI	38,194	42,461	(4,267 ) (10.0 )
NOI	\$111,214	\$113,080	\$(1,866) (1.7)%

## **Table of Contents**

The following table summarizes certain statistics of our Same-Store Office and Studio properties:

	Three Months Ended March 31,	
	2018	2017
Same-Store Office statistics:		
Number of properties	29	29
Rentable square feet	7,308,513	7,308,513
Ending % leased	94.2 %	95.6 %
Ending % occupied	93.1 %	95.2 %
Average % occupied for the period	92.6 %	95.1 %
Average annual rental rate per square foot	\$45.10	\$41.40

Same-Store Studio statistics:

Number of properties 2 2
Rentable square feet 873,002 873,002
Average % occupied for the period 90.2 % 90.3 %

The following table gives further detail on our NOI:

The following table gives farm			1 01				
		Months Ended Ma	arch 31,				
	2018				2017		
	Same-S	t&fon-Same-Store	e Total	Same-S	t <b>Non-</b> Same-Store	eTotal	
Revenues							
Office							
Rental	\$79,525	5\$ 50,557	\$130,082	\$76,91	7\$ 56,599	\$133,516	
Tenant recoveries	15,565	5,339	20,904	11,193	6,208	17,401	
Parking and other	3,327	2,219	5,546	3,041	2,858	5,899	
Total Office revenues	98,417	58,115	156,532	91,151	65,665	156,816	
Studio							
Rental	7,531	2,852	10,383	6,685	_	6,685	
Tenant recoveries	247	107	354	665		665	
Other property-related revenue		2,364	6,435	4,042		4,042	
Other	414		414	77		77	
Total Studio revenues	12,263	5 323	17,586	11,469		11,469	
Total Studio Tevenues	12,203	3,323	17,500	11,407		11,407	
Total revenues	110,680	63,438	174,118	102,620	65,665	168,285	
Operating Expenses							
Office operating expenses	31,270	21,970	53,240	24,750	23,204	47,954	
Studio operating expenses	6,390	3,274	9,664	7,251		7,251	
Total operating expenses	37,660	25,244	62,904	32,001	23,204	55,205	
Office NOI	67,147	36,145	103,292	66,401	42,461	108,862	
Studio NOI	5,873	2,049	7,922		_	4,218	
NOI	,	)\$ 38,194	•	-	9\$ 42,461	\$113,080	
· -	, \		,	,	,	, ,	

#### **Table of Contents**

The following table gives further detail on our change in NOI:

The following table gives furth			_				
Three Months Ended March 31, 2018 as compared to							
Three Months Ended March 31, 2017							
	Same-Store Non-Same-Store Total						
	Dollar	Percent	Dollar	Percent	Dollar	Perce	ent
	Change	Change	Change	Change	Change	Chan	ge
Revenues							
Office							
Rental	\$2,608	3.4 %	\$(6,042	2)(10.7)%	\$(3,434	)(2.6	)%
Tenant recoveries	4,372	39.1	(869	)(14.0)	3,503	20.1	
Parking and other	286	9.4	(639	)(22.4)	(353	)(6.0	)
Total Office revenues	7,266	8.0	(7,550	)(11.5)	(284	)(0.2	)
Studio							
Rental	846	12.7	2,852	100.0	3,698	55.3	
Tenant recoveries		)(62.9)	107	100.0	-	)(46.8	)
Other property-related revenue	•	0.7	2,364	100.0	2,393	59.2	,
Other	337	437.7		100.0	337	437.7	7
Total Studio revenues	794	6.9	5,323	100.0	6,117	53.3	
Total revenues	8,060	7.9	(2,227	)(3.4 )	5,833	3.5	
Operating expenses							
Office operating expenses	6,520	26.3	(1,234	)(5.3)	5,286	11.0	
Studio operating expenses	-	)(11.9)	3,274	100.0	2,413	33.3	
Total operating expenses	5,659	17.7	2,040	8.8	7,699	13.9	
Office NOI	746	1.1	(6,316	)(14.9)	(5,570	)(5.1	)
Studio NOI	1,655	39.2	2,049	100.0	3,704	87.8	,
NOI	\$2,401		-	')(10.0)%	-		)%

NOI decreased \$1.9 million, or 1.7%, for the three months ended March 31, 2018 as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2017, primarily resulting from:

\$746 thousand, or 1.1%, increase in NOI from our Same-Store Office properties resulting primarily from increased rental revenues relating to leases signed at our Rincon Center (Google LLC) and 875 Howard (Glu Mobile, Inc. and Snap, Inc.) properties at a higher rate than expiring leases, offset by lease expirations at our Foothill Research Center (Robert Bosch) and Clocktower Square (K&L Gates) properties. Tenant recoveries and Office operating expenses increased primarily due to property tax adjustments recorded in 2017 for our Rincon Center property. In addition, office operating expenses increased due to ground rent expense at our 3400 Hillview property.

\$6.3 million, or 14.9%, decrease in NOI from our Non-Same-Store Office properties resulting primarily from our Campus Center property, which was taken off-line for a redevelopment project, and the sale of our 222 Kearny (February 2017), Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II (November 2017), Embarcadero Place (January 2018) and 2180 Sand Hill (March 2018) properties. The decrease was partially offset by the commencement of Netflix, Inc.'s leases at our ICON and CUE properties and lease-up at our 604 Arizona (ZipRecruiter) redevelopment property, our 450 Alaskan (Saltchuk Resources) development property and Hill7 (WeWork) property.

•

\$1.7 million, or 39.2%, increase in NOI from our Same-Store Studio properties resulting primarily from higher rental revenues, partially offset by lower operating expenses. The increase was primarily a result of higher rental rates at our Sunset Gower Studios and Sunset Bronson Studios, partially offset by lower operating expenses due to decreased utility expenses, administrative expenses and bad debt expenses.

\$2.0 million, or 100.0%, increase in NOI from our Non-Same-Store Studio property resulting from our acquisition of Sunset Las Palmas Studios in May 2017.

#### **Table of Contents**

Office NOI

Same-Store

Same-Store Office rental revenues increased \$2.6 million, or 3.4%, to \$79.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$76.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The increase was primarily due to leases signed at our Rincon Center (Google LLC) and 875 Howard (Glu Mobile, Inc. and Snap, Inc.) properties at a higher rate than expiring leases, partially offset by lease expirations at our Foothill Research Center (Robert Bosch) and Clocktower Square (K&L Gates) properties.

Same-Store Office tenant recoveries increased \$4.4 million, or 39.1%, to \$15.6 million for three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$11.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The increase was primarily due to property tax recovery adjustments recorded in 2017 for our Rincon Center property.

Same-Store Office parking and other revenues of \$3.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 remained relatively flat as compared to \$3.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017.

Same-Store Office operating expenses increased \$6.5 million, or 26.3%, to \$31.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$24.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The change was primarily due to property tax adjustments recorded in 2017 for our Rincon Center property and increased ground rent expense at our 3400 Hillview property.

#### Non-Same-Store

Non-Same-Store Office rental revenues decreased by \$6.0 million, or 10.7%, to \$50.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$56.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily due to our Campus Center property, which was taken off-line for a redevelopment project, and the sale of our 222 Kearny (February 2017), Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II (November 2017), Embarcadero Place (January 2018) and 2180 Sand Hill (March 2018) properties. The decrease was partially offset by the commencement of Netflix, Inc.'s leases at our ICON and CUE properties and lease-up at our 604 Arizona (ZipRecruiter) redevelopment property and our 450 Alaskan (Saltchuk Resources) development property.

Non-Same-Store Office tenant recoveries decreased \$0.9 million, or 14.0%, to \$5.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$6.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily due to our Campus Center property, which was taken off-line for a redevelopment project, and the sale of our 222 Kearny (February 2017), Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II (November 2017), Embarcadero Place (January 2018) and 2180 Sand Hill (March 2018) properties. The decrease was partially offset by the commencement of Netflix, Inc.'s lease at our ICON property and lease-up at our 450 Alaskan (Saltchuk Resources) development property and Hill7 (WeWork) property.

Non-Same-Store Office parking and other revenues of \$2.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 remained relatively flat as compared to \$2.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017.

Non-Same-Store Office operating expenses decreased by \$1.2 million, or 5.3%, to \$22.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$23.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily due to our Campus Center property, which was taken off-line for a redevelopment project, and the sale of our 222 Kearny (February 2017), Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II (November 2017), Embarcadero Place (January 2018) and 2180 Sand Hill (March 2018) properties. The decrease was partially offset by the commencement of Netflix, Inc.'s lease at our ICON property and lease-up at our 450 Alaskan (Saltchuk Resources) development property.

Studio NOI

Same-Store

Same-Store Studio rental revenues, tenant recoveries and other property-related revenues increased by \$0.8 million or 6.9% to \$12.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in

#### **Table of Contents**

rental revenues by \$0.8 million, or 12.7%, to \$7.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$6.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. Tenant recoveries of \$0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 remained relatively flat as compared to \$0.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. Other property-related revenues of \$4.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 remained relatively flat as compared to \$4.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The increase was primarily due to higher rental rates at our Sunset Gower Studios and Sunset Bronson Studios.

Same-Store Studio operating expenses decreased \$0.9 million, or 11.9%, to \$6.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$7.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The decrease is primarily due to decreased utility expenses, administrative expenses and bad debt expenses.

#### Non-Same-Store

Non-Same-Store Studio revenues were \$5.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018. Non-Same-Store Studio operating expenses were \$3.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018. We acquired Sunset Las Palmas Studios in May 2017, which caused the increase in revenues and expenses.

## Other Expenses (Income)

Interest expense decreased \$1.4 million, or 6.5%, to \$20.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$21.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. We had notes payable of \$2.26 billion at March 31, 2018 compared to \$2.43 billion at March 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily attributable to lower debt outstanding due to debt relief associated with the sale of our Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II properties (November 2017) and repayment of debt relating to our Rincon Center property (February 2018). Additionally, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement in March 2018, which resulted in reduced interest rates. Furthermore, capitalized interest increased primarily due to the Campus Center redevelopment.

Gains on sale of real estate increased \$20.8 million, 123.4%, to \$37.7 million during the three months ended March 31, 2018 as compared to \$16.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The increase resulted from the sale of Embarcadero Place (January 2018), 2600 Campus Drive (January 2018) and 2180 Sandhill (March 2018) properties in comparison to the prior year in which we sold our 222 Kearny (February 2017) and 3402 Pico (March 2017) properties.

Other income of \$404 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2018 remained relatively flat as compared to \$678 thousand for the three months ended March 31, 2017.

General and administrative expenses include wages and salaries for corporate-level employees, accounting, legal and other professional services, office supplies, entertainment, travel and automobile expenses, telecommunications and computer-related expenses and other miscellaneous items. General and administrative expenses increased \$1.8 million, or 12.7%, to \$15.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$13.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The change was primarily attributable to the adoption of the 2018 OPP Plan, increased staffing to meet operational needs and increased investor relations costs.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased \$10.2 million, or 14.4%, to \$60.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$70.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily related to the sale of our 222 Kearny (February 2017), Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II (November 2017), Embarcadero Place (January 2018) and 2180 Sandhill (March 2018) properties. The remaining decrease is associated with in-place lease intangibles that were fully amortized in 2017 and reduced depreciation related to our Campus Center property, which was taken off-line for redevelopment. The decrease was partially offset by increases in depreciation associated

with the acquisition of Sunset Las Palmas Studios in May 2017 and recently completed development properties.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have remained capitalized since our initial public offering through public offerings, private placements and continuous offerings under our at-the-market ("ATM") program. We currently expect that our principal sources of funds to meet

#### **Table of Contents**

our short-term and long-term liquidity requirements for working capital, strategic acquisitions, capital expenditures, tenant improvements, leasing costs, dividends and distributions, and repayments of outstanding debt financing will include:

Cash on hand, cash reserves and net cash provided by operations;

Proceeds from additional equity securities;

Our ATM program;

Borrowings under the operating partnership's unsecured revolving credit facility; and

Proceeds from additional secured or unsecured debt financings or offerings.

### **Liquidity Sources**

We had \$64.1 million of cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2018. Our principal source of operating cash flow is related to leasing and operating the properties in our portfolio. Our properties provide a relatively consistent stream of cash flow that provides us with resources to pay operating expenses, debt service and fund quarterly dividend and distribution requirements.

Our ability to access the equity capital markets will be dependent on a number of factors as well, including general market conditions for REITs and market perceptions about us.

We have an ATM program that allows us to sell up to \$125.0 million of common stock, \$20.1 million of which has been sold through March 31, 2018. Any future sales will depend on several factors, including, but not limited to, market conditions, the trading price of our common stock and our capital needs. We have no obligation to sell the remaining shares available for sale under this program.

As of March 31, 2018, we had total borrowing capacity of \$600.0 million under our unsecured revolving credit facility, \$20.0 million of which had been drawn. As of March 31, 2018, we had total borrowing capacity, subject to lender required submissions, of \$257.0 million under our construction loan secured by our Sunset Gower Studios and Sunset Bronson Studios properties, \$5.0 million of which had been drawn.

Our ability to incur additional debt will be dependent on a number of factors, including our degree of leverage, the value of our unencumbered assets and borrowing restrictions that may be imposed by lenders. If we incur additional debt, the risks associated with our leverage, including our ability to service our debt, would increase.

Our ratio of debt to total market capitalization was approximately 30.6% (counting Series A preferred units as debt) as of March 31, 2018.

	March 31,
	2018
Notes payable <sup>(1)</sup>	\$2,260,782
Series A preferred units	10,177
Common equity capitalization <sup>(2)</sup>	5,150,698
Total market capitalization	\$7,421,657
Series A preferred units & debt/total market capitalization	30.6 %

\_\_\_\_

- (1) Notes payable excludes unamortized deferred financing costs and loan discount.
  - Common equity capitalization represents the shares of common stock (including unvested restricted shares), OP
- (2) units outstanding and dilutive shares multiplied by \$32.53, which is the closing price of our stock, as reported by the NYSE, as of March 31, 2018.

#### **Table of Contents**

The following table sets forth information with respect to our outstanding indebtedness:

	March 31, 2018	December 31, 2017	Interest Rate <sup>(1)</sup>	Contractual Maturity Date
UNSECURED NOTES PAYABLE				
Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility <sup>(2)(3)</sup>	\$ 20,000	\$ 100,000	LIBOR + 1.05% to 1.50%	3/13/2022 (4)
Term Loan A <sup>(2)(5)</sup>	300,000	300,000	LIBOR + 1.20% to 1.70%	4/1/2020 (6)
Term Loan C <sup>(2)</sup>	75,000	75,000	LIBOR + 1.30% to 2.20%	11/17/2020
Term Loan B <sup>(2)(7)</sup>	350,000	350,000	LIBOR + 1.20% to 1.70%	4/1/2022
Term Loan D <sup>(2)(8)</sup>	125,000	125,000	LIBOR + 1.20% to 1.70%	11/17/2022
Series A Notes	110,000	110,000	4.34%	1/2/2023
Series E Notes	50,000	50,000	3.66%	9/15/2023
Series B Notes	259,000	259,000	4.69%	12/16/2025
Series D Notes	150,000	150,000	3.98%	7/6/2026
Registered Senior Notes <sup>(9)</sup>	400,000	400,000	3.95%	11/1/2027
Series C Notes	56,000	56,000	4.79%	12/16/2027
TOTAL UNSECURED NOTES PAYABLE	1,895,000	1,975,000		
SECURED NOTES PAYABLE				
Sunset Gower Studios/Sunset Bronson Studios <sup>(10)</sup>	5,001	5,001	LIBOR + 2.25%	3/4/2019 (4)
Met Park North <sup>(11)</sup>	64,500	64,500	LIBOR + 1.55%	8/1/2020
10950 Washington <sup>(12)</sup>	27,281	27,418	5.32%	3/11/2022
Element LA	168,000	168,000	4.59%	11/6/2025
Hill7 <sup>(13)</sup>	101,000	101,000	3.38%	11/6/2028
Rincon Center		98,392	5.13%	N/A
TOTAL SECURED NOTES PAYABLE	365,782	464,311		
TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE	2,260,782	2,439,311		
Unamortized deferred financing costs and loan discounts <sup>(14)</sup>	(20,094 )	(17,931 )		
TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE, NET	\$ 2,240,688	\$ 2,421,380		

Interest rate with respect to indebtedness is calculated on the basis of a 360-day year for the actual days elapsed.

<sup>(1)</sup> Interest rates are as of March 31, 2018, which may be different than the interest rates as of December 31, 2017 for corresponding indebtedness.

We have an option to make an irrevocable election to change the interest rate depending on our credit rating or a specified base rate plus an applicable margin. As of March 31, 2018, no such election had been made.

<sup>(3)</sup> We have a total capacity of \$600.0 million under our unsecured revolving credit facility.

<sup>(4)</sup> The maturity date may be extended once for an additional one-year term.

<sup>(5)</sup> The outstanding balance of the term loan was effectively fixed at 2.56% to 3.06% per annum through the use of two interest rate swaps. See Part I, Item 1 "Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements—Derivatives" for details.

<sup>(6)</sup> The maturity date may be extended twice, each time for an additional one-year term.

The outstanding balance of the term loan was effectively fixed at 2.96% to 3.46% per annum through the use of two interest rate aware See B. 17 June 1937. two interest rate swaps. See Part I, Item 1 "Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements—Derivatives" for details.

- (8) The outstanding balance of the term loan was effectively fixed at 2.63% to 3.13% per annum through the use of an interest rate swap. See Part I, Item 1 "Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements—Derivatives" for details.
- (9) On October 2, 2017, we completed an underwritten public offering of \$400.0 million of senior notes, which were issued at 99.815% of par.
- (10) We have the ability to draw up to \$257.0 million under our construction loan, subject to lender required submissions.
  - This loan bears interest only. Interest on the full loan amount was effectively fixed at 3.71% per annum through
- (11) the use of an interest rate swap. See Part I, Item 1 "Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements—Derivatives" for details.
- Monthly debt service includes annual debt amortization payments based on a 30-year amortization schedule with a balloon payment at maturity.
  - We own 55% of the ownership interest in the consolidated joint venture that owns the Hill7 property. The full
- (13) amount of the loan is shown. This loan bears interest only at 3.38% until November 6, 2026, at which time the interest rate will increase and monthly debt service will include principal payments with a balloon payment at maturity.
- (14) Excludes deferred financing costs related to establishing our unsecured revolving credit facility.

The operating partnership was in compliance with its financial covenants as of March 31, 2018.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### Liquidity Uses

#### **Contractual Obligations**

During the three months ended March 31, 2018, there were no material changes outside the ordinary course of business in the information regarding specified contractual obligations contained in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K. See Part I, Item 1 "Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statements—Notes Payable, net" for information regarding our minimum future principal payments due on our note payables. See Part I, Item 1 "Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements—Future Minimum Lease Payments" for information regarding our future minimum ground lease payments.

#### Cash Flows

A comparison of our cash flow activity is as follows:

	Three Months			
	Ended March 31,			
	2018	2018 2017 Dollar Change	Dollar	Percent
	2016		Change	Change
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$64,447	\$85,720	\$(21,273)	(24.8)%
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	133,492	(51,912)	185,404	357.2
Net cash used in financing activities	(224,239)	(8,310)	(215,929)	2,598.4

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash were \$75.0 million and \$101.3 million at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

#### **Operating Activities**

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased by \$21.3 million, or 24.8%, to \$64.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$85.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The change resulted primarily from a decrease in cash NOI, as defined, from our Office and Studio properties, driven by lower cash rents due to the sale of our Pinnacle I and Pinnacle II (November 2017), Embarcadero Place (January 2018), 2600 Campus Drive (January 2018) and 2180 Sand Hill (March 2018) properties and redevelopment at our Campus Center property. The decrease was partially offset by higher cash NOI related to the commencement of Netflix, Inc.'s lease at our ICON, our 450 Alaskan (Saltchuk Resources) development project, and Sunset Las Palmas Studios.

#### **Investing Activities**

Net cash provided by investing activities increased by \$185.4 million, or 357.2%, to \$133.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to net cash used in investing activities of \$51.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The increase resulted primarily from an increase in proceeds from sales of real estate properties and decrease in cash used for deposit for acquisitions, partially offset by an increase in cash used for additions to investment in real estate.

## Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities increased by \$215.9 million, or 2,598.4%, to \$224.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2018 compared to \$8.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2017. The change resulted primarily from a reduction in proceeds from sale of stock, partially offset by repurchases of common units in our operating partnership and increase in proceeds from notes payable.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

### **Critical Accounting Policies**

Our discussion and analysis of our historical financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates of certain items and judgments as to certain future events, for example with respect to the assignment of the purchase price of an acquired property among land, buildings, improvements, equipment and any related intangible assets and liabilities, or the effect of a property tax reassessment of our properties. These determinations, even though inherently subjective and prone to change, affect the reported amounts of our assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. While we believe that our estimates are based on reasonable assumptions and judgments at the time they are made, some of our assumptions, estimates and judgments will inevitably prove to be incorrect. As a result, actual outcomes will likely differ from our accruals and those differences—positive or negative—could be material. Some of our accruals are subject to adjustment, as we believe appropriate based on revised estimates and reconciliation to the actual results when available.

In addition, we identified certain critical accounting policies that affect certain of our more significant estimates and assumptions used in preparing our consolidated financial statements in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K. We have not made any material changes to these policies during the periods covered by this Report.

## Non-GAAP Supplemental Financial Measure: Funds From Operations

We calculate FFO in accordance with the White Paper on FFO approved by the Board of Governors of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts. The White Paper defines FFO as net income or loss calculated in accordance with GAAP, excluding extraordinary items, as defined by GAAP, gains and losses from sales of depreciable real estate and impairment write-downs associated with depreciable real estate, plus real estate-related depreciation and amortization (excluding amortization of deferred financing costs and depreciation of non-real estate assets) and after adjustment for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. The calculation of FFO includes the amortization of deferred revenue related to tenant-funded tenant improvements and excludes the depreciation of the related tenant improvement assets. We believe that FFO is a useful supplemental measure of our operating performance. The exclusion from FFO of gains and losses from the sale of operating real estate assets allows investors and analysts to readily identify the operating results of the assets that form the core of our activity and assists in comparing those operating results between periods. Also, because FFO is generally recognized as the industry standard for reporting the operations of REITs, it facilitates comparisons of operating performance to other REITs. However, other REITs may use different methodologies to calculate FFO, and accordingly our FFO may not be comparable to all other REITs.

Implicit in historical cost accounting for real estate assets in accordance with GAAP is the assumption that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since real estate values have historically risen or fallen with market conditions, many industry investors and analysts have considered presentations of operating results for real estate companies using historical cost accounting alone to be insufficient. Because FFO excludes depreciation and amortization of real estate assets, we believe that FFO along with the required GAAP presentations provides a more complete measurement of our performance relative to our competitors and a more appropriate basis on which to make decisions involving operating, financing and investing activities than the required GAAP presentations alone would provide. We use FFO per share to calculate annual cash bonuses for certain employees.

However, FFO should not be viewed as an alternative measure of our operating performance because it does not reflect either depreciation and amortization costs or the level of capital expenditures and leasing costs necessary to maintain the operating performance of our properties, which are significant economic costs and could materially impact our results from operations.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to FFO:

Three Months
Ended March 31,
2018 2017
\$52,563 \$24,153

Net income Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 60,069 70,294
Gains on sale of real estate (37,674) (16,866)
FFO attributable to non-controlling interests (5,331) (5,507)
Net income attributable to preferred units (159) (159)
FFO to common stockholders and unitholders \$69,468 \$71,915

#### **Table of Contents**

## ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information about our market risk is disclosed in Part II, Item 7A, of our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference. There have been no material changes for the three months ended March 31, 2018 to the information provided in Part II, Item 7A, of our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

#### ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures (Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.)

Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.'s reports under the Exchange Act is processed, recorded, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Based on the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded, as of that time, that Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.'s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in providing a reasonable level of assurance that information Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. is required to disclose in reports that Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. files under the Exchange Act is processed, recorded, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures (Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.)

Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. maintains disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.'s reports under the Exchange Act is processed, recorded, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. (the sole general partner of Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.), as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. (the sole general partner of Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.), of

the effectiveness of the design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Based on the foregoing, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. (the sole general partner of Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.) concluded, as of that time, that Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.'s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in providing a reasonable level of assurance that information Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. is required to disclose in reports that Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. files under the Exchange Act is processed, recorded, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

#### **Table of Contents**

Officer of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc. (the sole general partner of Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.), as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.)

There have been no changes that occurred during the first quarter of the year covered by this report in Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation referenced above that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.)

There have been no changes that occurred during the first quarter of the year covered by this report in Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.'s internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation referenced above that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

#### **Table of Contents**

## PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

#### ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings arising out of, or incident to, our ordinary course of business. We are not currently a party, as plaintiff or defendant, to any legal proceedings that we believe to be material or that, individually or in the aggregate, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows if determined adversely to us.

## ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors included in the section entitled "Risk Factors" in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Please review the Risk Factors set forth in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

## ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

(a) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities:

During the first quarter of 2018, our operating partnership issued partnership units in private placements in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act, in the amounts and for the consideration set forth below:

During the first quarter of 2018, the Company issued an aggregate of 43,900 shares of its common stock in connection with restricted stock awards for no cash consideration, out of which 20,353 shares of common stock were forfeited to the Company in connection with tax withholding obligations for a net issuance of 23,547 shares of common stock. For each share of common stock issued by the Company in connection with such an award, our operating partnership issued a restricted common unit to the Company as provided in our operating partnership's partnership agreement. During the first quarter of 2018, our operating partnership issued an aggregate of 43,900 common units to the Company.

All other issuances of unregistered equity securities of our operating partnership during the first quarter of 2018 have previously been disclosed in filings with the SEC. For all issuances of units to the Company, our operating partnership relied on the Company's status as a publicly traded NYSE-listed company with over \$6.45 billion in total consolidated assets and as our operating partnership's majority owner and sole general partner as the basis for the exemption under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

- (b)Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities: None
- (c)Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers:

During the three months ended March 31, 2018, certain employees surrendered common shares owned by them to satisfy their statutory federal income tax obligation associated with the vesting of restricted common shares of beneficial interest issued under our 2010 Plan.

## **Table of Contents**

The following table summarizes all of the repurchases of the Company equity securities during the first quarter of 2018:

		Total Number Of	Maximum Number
tal Number of	Average Price	Shares Purchased	Of Shares That May
ares	Paid Per	As Part Of Publicly	Yet Be Purchased
rchased	Share <sup>(1)</sup>	Announced Plans	Under The Plans Or
		Or Programs	Programs
,353	\$ 34.25	N/A	N/A
	<u> </u>	N/A	N/A
	<u> </u>	N/A	N/A
,353	\$ 34.25	N/A	N/A
1	ares rchased ,353	tal Number of Average Price ares Paid Per Share <sup>(1)</sup> 353 \$ 34.25	tal Number of Average Price Shares Purchased ares Paid Per As Part Of Publicly rchased Share <sup>(1)</sup> Announced Plans Or Programs  353 \$ 34.25 N/A

The price paid per share is based on the closing price of our common stock, as reported by the NYSE, as of the date of the determination of the statutory federal tax income.

The following table summarizes all of the repurchases of operating partnership equity securities during the first quarter of 2018:

			Total Number Of	Maximum Number	
Period	Total Number of Units Purchased	Average Price Paid Per Unit <sup>(1)</sup>	Units Purchased	Of Units That May	
			As Part Of Publicly	Yet Be Purchased	
			Announced Plans	Under The Plans Or	
			Or Programs	Programs	
January 1 - January 31, 2018	20,353	\$ 34.25	N/A	N/A	
February 1 - February 28, 2018	_	_	N/A	N/A	
March 1 - March 31, 2018	_	_	N/A	N/A	
Total	20,353	\$ 34.25	N/A	N/A	

The price paid per unit is based on the closing price of our common stock, as reported by the NYSE, as of the date of the determination of the statutory federal tax income.

## ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

## Table of Contents

## ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

		Incorporated by Reference			
Exhibit No.	Description	Form	File No.	Exhibit No.	Filing Date
3.1	Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.	S-11/A	333-164916	3.1	May 12, 2010
3.2	Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.	8-K	001-34789	3.1	January 12, 2015
3.3	Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.	10-K	001-34789	10.1	February 26, 2016
3.4	Certificate of Limited Partnership of Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.	10-Q	001-34789	3.4	November 4, 2016
10.1	Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of March 13, 2018, by and among Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P., as borrower, each of the financial institutions a signatory thereto, as lenders, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent	8-K	001-34789	10.1	March 19, 2018
31.1	<u>Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Hudson Pacific Properties.</u>				
31.2	Inc.  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.				
31.3	<u>Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Hudson Pacific Properties.</u>				
31.4	L.P. Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P. Certifications by Chief Financial				
32.1	Certifications by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.				
32.2	Certifications by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 for Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.				
101	The following financial information from Hudson Pacific Properties, Inc.'s and Hudson Pacific Properties, L.P.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets (unaudited), (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited), (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited), (iv) Consolidated Statements of Equity (unaudited), (v) Consolidated Statements of Capital (unaudited), (vi) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited) and (vii) Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements*				

<sup>\*</sup> Pursuant to Rule 406T

of

Regulation

S-T, the

interactive

data files on

Exhibit 101

hereto are

deemed not

filed or part

of a

registration

statement

or

prospectus

for

purposes of

Section 11

or 12 of the

Securities

Act of

1933, as

amended,

are deemed

not filed for

purposes of

Section 18

of the

Securities

and

Exchange

Act of

1934, as

amended,

and

otherwise

are not

subject to

liability

under those

sections.

## **Table of Contents**

## **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC.

Date: May 4, 2018 /S/ VICTOR J. COLEMAN

Victor J. Coleman

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, INC.

Date: May 4, 2018 /S/ MARK T. LAMMAS

Mark T. Lammas

Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer)

## **Table of Contents**

## **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P.

Date: May 4, 2018 /S/ VICTOR J. COLEMAN

Victor J. Coleman

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

HUDSON PACIFIC PROPERTIES, L.P.

Date: May 4, 2018 /S/ MARK T. LAMMAS

Mark T. Lammas

Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer)